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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Dhrectors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows

T Freyman

M Smith

C Soenderby (resigned 1 January 2013)
S Hudson

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company 1s that of a finance company to other Abbott Laboratories group
companies There have not been any significant changes in the company's principal activities n the year under
review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in the company's
activities next year

Bustness review

Fair review of the business
The profit after tax for the period was £2,646,000 (2011 £2,273,000)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The company has significant financial resources which are subject to interest rate risk The directors believe that
the company 1s well placed to manage its business risk successfully despite the current uncertamn economic
outlook

Directors' habihites

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director i order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company auditor 1s aware of that information The
directors confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and which they know the auditor 1s
unaware of

Reappointment of auditors
The auditors Deloitte LLP are deemed to be reapponted under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006

Approved by the Bpard on 23 September 2013 and signed on 1its behalf by

K Gogay
Company secréfary
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements m accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mapproprate to presume that the
company will continue 1 business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and ather wregularities
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Abbout (UK) Finance Limited for the year ended 31 December
2012, set out on pages 5 to 10 which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and related notes 1
to 11 The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation 1s apphcable taw and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihty to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibihties (set out on page 2), the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimon on the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applhied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial mformation m the Directors' Report to identify material
mconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
msstatements or mconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimion on the financial statements
In our opinon the financeal statements

» give a true and faiwr view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts profit for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaliy Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opmion the information given n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

weseenee CORtINUEd

Matters on which we are required fo report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if; in our opinton

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

N s A

Richard Muschamp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloutte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

23 September 2013
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Profit and Loss Account for the
Year Ended 31 December 2012

Note
Turnover
Operating profit/(loss)
Other interest receivable and similar mcome 3
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit for the financial year 8

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations

2012 2011

£ 000 £ 000
2,646 2,273
2,646 2,273
2,646 2,273

The company has no recogmsed gans or losses for the year other than the results above

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
(Registration number: 3949843)
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note £ 000 £ 000
Current assets
Debtors 6 56,238 53,592
Debtors - over 1 yr 128,302 128,302
Net assets 184,540 181,894
Share capital and reserves
Called up share capital - -
Other reserves 8 108,000 108,000
Profit and loss account 8 76,540 73,894
Shareholders' funds 9 184,540 181,894

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

M Smuth
Director

The notes on pages 7 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been apphed consistently throughout the
period and the preceding year 1s as follows -

Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis and have been prepared in accordance with
applhicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

The company s exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as 90% or more of the voting nights are held
within the group

Going concern

The company’s business activities, together with the factors hkely to affect 1ts future development, performance
and position, are set out i the Business Review which forms part of the Directors' Report After making
enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue n
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountig 1n preparing the annual report and accounts

Taxation

UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recognised in respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date Timung differences are differences between the company's taxable profits and its results as stated m
the accounts that arse from the mnclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those
m which they are recogmised in the accounts A net deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed as recoverable only when, on
the basis of available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Interest Income

Interest income 15 due to the company on cash deposits with affiliated companies or third party banks Interest
mncome 15 calculated on a daily basis and accrued monthly

2 Auditor's remuneration

Auditor remuncration of £4,000 (2011 £4,000) 15 borne by the immediate parent company, Abbott (UK)
Holdings Limuted

3 Other interest receivable and similar income

2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
Interest from group companies 2,646 2,273
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

ceennens CONRLIRUEd

Staff costs

During the current period and prior year all the dwectors were paid by other affiliates within the Abbott
Laboratories group of companies They received no emoluments from the company The company has no other
employees

Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2012 2011
£ 060 £ 000

Total current tax - -

Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

Tax on profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s lower than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of
corporation tax m the UK of 24 5% (2011 - 26 5%)

The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011

£000 £ 000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,646 2,273
Corporation tax at standard rate 648 602
Group relief - losses surrendered from affibiated companies (648) (602)

Total current tax - -
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

weenenees CORLiNHed

6 Debtors
2012 2011
£ 000 £000
Amounts owed by group undertakings 184,540 181,894

Debtors includes £128,302,000 (2011 - £128,302,000) receivable after more than one year

7 Share capital

Allotted, 1ssued and unpaid
31 December 31 December

2012 2011
£ 000 £000
100 ordinary shares of £1 each - -
8 Reserves
Other Profit and
reserves loss account Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 January 2012 108,000 73,894 181,854
Profit for the year - 2,646 2,646
At 31 December 2012 108,000 76,540 184,540
9 Reconcihation of movement in shareholders' funds
2012 2011
£ 000 £000
Profit attributable to the members of the company 2,646 2,273
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 2,646 2,273
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 181,894 179,621
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 184,540 181,894

10 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing
transactions with other members of the group
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

eeerenres CORMINELEA

11 Control

The company 1s controlled by the immediate parent company Abbott (UK) Heldings Limited The smallest and
largest group mto which the results of Abbott (UK) Finance Limited are consolidated 1s the ultimate parent
company Abbott Laboratories, incorporated m the State of Ilhnowis, USA The consolhidated accounts are
available to the public and may be obtained from Abbott Laboratories, 100 Abbott Park Road, Abbott Park,
IL60064-6400, USA
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Conschdated Statement of Earnings
{doltars end sheres in thousands except per share dala}

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Year Endad Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Net Salgs $39,873,910 $38,851,259 $35,166,721

Cost of products sold 15,119,718 15,540,580 14,665,192
Research and development 4,322,182 4,129,414 3,724,424
Acqulred in-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 672,500 313,200
Seling, general and administrative 12,059,495 12,756,817 10,376,324

Total Operating Cost and Expenses 31,789,385 33,089,311 29,079,140
Operaling Eamings 8,084,515 5,751,948 6,087,581

Interest expense 592,403 530,141 553,135

Interest (ncome) (79,225} 85,196) (105,453)
Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -

Net forelgn exchange (gain) loss (8,044) (50,271) (10,824)
Other (income) expensa, net (34,206} 158,632 (62,011)
Eamings Before Taxes 6,262,614 5,198,642 5,712,834

Texes on Eamnings 299,694 470,193 1,088,662

Net Earnings $ 5,062,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 376 3 303 $ 298
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share $ 37z $ 301 8 2 95

Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding Used for Basic

Earnings Per Common Sharg 1,675,378 1,557,643 1,546,400
Dilustive Common Stock Oplions and Awards 16,460 9,746 9,622

Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Dilutrve Cormmon Stock Options and Awards 1,591,838 1,667,389 1,656,022

Qutstanding Common Stock Oplions Having No Dilutive Effect 1,166 26,789 29,403

The accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this slatement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive income
{ciokars iy thousands)

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010

Net Earnings $5,962,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Foreign cumency translation (loss) adjustments (6,826} (817,539) {2,290,256)
Net actuanial {losses) and prior service cost and credits and amortization of

net actuanal losses and prior service cost and cradils,

net of taxes of $(276,076) in 2012, ${391,528) in 2011 and ${70,389} In 2010 {B54,935) (510,444) (59.447)
Unrealized {losses) gains on marketable equity secunties,

net of taxes of ${4,079) in 2012, $8,338 In 2011 and $61 1n 2010 (7.066) 14,442 108

Net adjustments for denvative instruments designated as cash flow hedges,

nat of taxes of $(29,417) in 2012, $19,857 in 2011 and $20,567 in 2010 {117 666) 83,202 128,677

Other Comprahensive (loss) {996,493) (1,230,339} {2,220,920)
Comprehanswve Income $4,066,427 $ 3,488,110 $ 2,405,252

Supplemental Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income Information,

net of tax as of December 31

Cumutatrva foreign currency translation loss (gain) adjustments $ 79353 $ 72527 $ (745,012)
Net actuanal ksses and prior service cost and credils 3,595,554 2,730,619 2,220,175

Cumulative unrealized {gains) on marketable equity secunties (31,363} (38,429) (23,987)
Cumulative (gains) on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hadgas {49,866) {167 532} (84,330)

The accompanying notes to consoldated financlal statements are an integral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows
foobars n thousands)

Year Ended Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Cash Flow From {Used in) Operating Activities

Net sarnings $ 5,962,920 $4,728,449 $ 4,626,172
Adjustments to reconcile earrungs to net cash from operating activities —

Dapreciation 1,363,673 1,395,371 1,207,450
Amorlization of intangible assots 1,419,534 1,648,523 1,416,855
Share-based compensation 433,114 382,602 387,183
Acquired in-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 672,500 313,200
Investing and financing {galns) losses, net 356,020 141,565 126,337
Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -
Trade receivables 35,996 (670,152) (394,665)
Inventones (417,053} (129,621} 139,857
Prepaid expenses and other assels {35,288) 413,268 553,145
Trade accounts payable and other liabiities (134,209 1,789,652 572,633
Income taxes {1,309,268) {1.402,078) {212,086)
Net Cash From Operating Activitles 9,314,401 8,970,077 8,735,981
Cash Flow From (Used in) Investing Activities

Acquisitions of businesses and technologies, net of cash acquired (1,227,473} {672,500) {0,433,243)
Acquisitions of property and eguipmant {1,795,289) {1,491,500) (1,015,075)
Purchases of investment secunties (11,997 ,654) {5,109,987}) (805,932)
Proceeds from sales of investment secunties 8,936,406 5,848,720 954,361
Relaase of {deposit of) restncted funds - 1,870,000 {1,870,000)
Other 2,722 16,009 (18,426)
Net Cash (Used in) From Investing Actwties (6,081,288} 260,832 {12,188,315)

Cash Flow From (Used in) Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of {repayments of) short-term debt and other 783,868 {1,964,685) {203,854)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and dabt with matuntes over 3 months 14,700,000 1,000,600 4,000,000
Repaymants of long-term debt and debt with maturties over 3 months (11,071,178} (3,012,426} (1,673,998)
Purchases of common shares {2,364,240) (77,000 {866,825)
Proceeds from stock oplions exercised, Including incomeé tax bensfit 1,850,454 968,759 328,411
Dwidends pad (3,182,811) (2,938,006) (2,671,475)
Net Cash From {Used i) Financing Actilies 716,093 (6,023,455) {1,.087,741)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 40,137 {43,005) {620,883)
Net Increase {Dacrease) n Cash and Cash Equvalents 3,989,343 3,164,449 {5,160,988)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 6,812,820 3,648,371 8,809,339
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 10,802,163 $6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Supplamantal Cash Flow [nformation

Income taxes pad $ 1,368,581 $1,781,602 $ 809,710
Interest pad 575,895 544,559 580,168

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement




Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet

{dokars in thousands)
December 31 2012 2011 2010
Assets
Currant Assots
Cash and cash equivalerits $10,802,163 $ 6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Investments, primarily bank trme depositsand U S treasury bills 4,371,821 1,284,539 1,803,079
Restricted funds, primanly U S treasury bills - - 1,872,490
Trade recelvables, less allowances of —
2012 $405,921, 2011 $420,579, 2010 $388,564 7,612,860 7,683,920 7,184,034
Inventories
Finlshed products 2,345,455 2,220,627 2,058,735
Work in process 628,874 432,358 383,580
Matenals 817,984 G31,384 746,419
Total iInventories 3,792,313 3,284,249 3,188,734
Daferred Income taxes 2,986,216 2,700,540 3.076,051
Other prepaid expenses and recelvables 1,757,210 2,002,706 1,544,770
Total Current Assats 31,322,583 23,768,774 22,317,529
Investments 273,595 378,225 302,049
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 604,462 633,917 648,988
Buldings 4,259,240 4,467,387 4,334,236
Equpment 13,110,833 12,216,388 11,813,618
Construchon in progress 954,352 698,873 577.460
18,028,887 18,016,565 17,374,302
Less accumulaled depreciation and amortization 10,865,840 10,142,610 9,403,346
Net Property and Equipmant 8,083,047 7,873,955 7,970,956
Intangibla Assets, net of amortization 8,588,285 9,989,636 12,151,628
Goodwll 15,774,127 15,705,380 15,930,077
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Assels 3,213,307 2,560,923 1,901,613
$67,234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852
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Consohdated Balance Sheet
{dokars i thousands)

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

December 31 2012 201 2010

Liabtities and Shareholdars’ Investment

Current Liabities

Short-term borrowings § 2,081,839 $ 2,347,859 $ 4,349,796

Trade accounts payabie 1,796,990 1,721,127 1,635,759

Salanes, wages and commissions 1,427,765 1,260,121 1,328,665

Other accrued labihties 6,787,995 7,854,994 6,014,772

Dividends payable 221,340 754,284 680,749

Income taxes payable 655,424 514,947 1,307,723

Currant portion of kong term debt 308,823 1,026,896 2,044,970

Total Curment Liabilities 13,280,176 15,480,228 17,262,434

Long-term Debt 18,085,302 12,039,822 12,523,517

Post-employment Obligations and Cther Long-term Liabilttes 9,056,234 8,230,698 8,022,770

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ investment

Prafared shares, one dollar par value

Authorized — 1,000,000 shares, none 1ssued - - -

Common shares, without par value

Authonzed — 2,400,000,000 sharas

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484,

2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 11,754,552 0,817,134 8,744,703

Common sharas held in treasury, at cost —

Shares 2012 99,262,982,

2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 {5,580,909) (3,687.478) (3,916,823}

Earmings employed in the business 24,150,986 20,907,362 19,215,768

Accumulated othar comprehensve mcome (loss) (3,593,678} (2,697,185} (1,366,846)

Total Abbott Shareholders’ Investmant 26,720,961 24,439,833 22,676,802

Noncontrofing Interests in Subsidianes 92,271 86,312 88,329

Total Shareholders' Invastmeant 26,813,232 24,526,145 22,765,131
$67,234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial staterments are an intagral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment
{olodars in thousands exced per share data)

Year Ended Decamber 31 2012 2011 2010
Common Shares

Beginning of Year

Shares 2012 1,538,870,201, 2011 1,619,680,876, 2010 1,612,683,987 $ 9,817,134 $ 8,744,703 $ 8,257,873
Issued under incantive stock programs

Shares 2012 37,060,283, 2011 19,180,325, 2010 7,005,889 1,853,574 954,148 316,071

Share-based compensation 434,601 382,326 388,493

Issuance of restricted stock awards {350,757) {284,043) {217,734)
End of Year

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484, 2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,680,876 $11,754,552 $ 9,817,134 $ 8,744,703

Common Shares Held In Treasury

Baginning of Year

Shares 2012 68,491,382, 2011 72,705,928, 2010 61,516,398 $ (3,687,478} $ (3,916,823) $ (3,310,347}
Issued under iIncantive stock programs

Shares 2012 6,691,748, 2011 4,638,841, 2010 4,166,200 362,764 249876 224,237
Purchased

Shares 2012 37,463,358, 2011 424,295, 2010 15,355,730 {2,266,195) {20,531) (830,713}
End of Year

Shares 2012 99,262,092, 2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 $ (5,590,909) $ (3,687,478) $ (3,916,823)

Earnings Employed in tha Business

Begmning of Year $20,907,362 $19,215,768 $17,342,694
Net eamings 5,962,920 4,728,449 4,626,172
Cash dividends declared on common shares

{per sharo — 2012 $1 67, 2011 $1 92, 2010 $176) (2,649,8686) {3.011,631) {2,731,584)
Effect of common and treasury share transactions (69,420) (25,224) {21,514)
End of Year $24,150,996 $20,907,362 $19,215,768

Accurmulated Other Comprahensive Income {Loss)

Baginning of Year $ (2,597,185) $ (1.366,846) $ 854,074
Other comprehensive incoma (loss) (996,493) {1,230,339) (2,220,920}
End of Year $ (3.593,678) $ {2,597,185) $ {1,366,846)

Noncontroling Interests in Subsidianes

Beginmng of Year % 86,312 $ 88329 $ 43,102
Noncontroling Interests’ share of income,

business combinations, net of distributions and share repurchases 5,959 (2.017) 45,227
End of Year $ 92,271 $ 86312 $ 88329

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business -~ Abbott's principal business is the
discovery, development, manufacture and sale of a broad line
of health care products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companles, one in diversified medical products

and the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomplish
the separation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc for Its
ressarch-bassd pharmaceuticals business which consists primanly
of Abbotts Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment On
January 1, 2013, Abbott distnbuted all of the outstanding shares of
AbbVie Inc to Abbott's shareholders As a result of the distnbution,
AbbVia is now an Independent company trading under the symbo!
“ABBV" Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the histoncal results
of the research-based pharmaceuticals business will be reflected in
Abbott's consolidated financlal statements as discontinued operations

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Dua to the nature of its
operations, Abbott is not subject to significant concentration nsks relat-
ing to customers, products or geographic locatons, excapl that three
U S wholesalers accounted for 23 percent of trade receivables as of
December 31, 2012 and 2010 and 22 percent of trade recevables as
of Dacember 31, 2011 1n addition, governmental accounts in laly,
Span, Greece and Portugal accountad for 16 percent, 23 persant, and
21 parcent of total net trade recenvables as of December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectvely Product warranties are not significant

Abbott has no matenal exposures to off-balance sheet arrangements,
no special purpose entiies, nor acimbies that include non-
exchange-traded contracts accounted for at far value Abbolt has
penodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course of busi-
ness, such as assignment of product nghts, with other companies
which has resulted in Abbotl becoming secondanly liable for obliga-
tons that Abbotl was previously pnmarly kable Since Abboit no
longer mantains a business relationship with the other parties, Abbotl
ls unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of
future payrments, if any, under these obligations Based upon past
experience, the likelihood of payments under thess agreemenis 1s
remate Abbotl penodically acquires a business or product nghts n
which Abboit agrees to pay contingent consideration based on attan-
ing cartain threshalds or based on the occurrence of certain events

Basis of Consoldation and Changa in Accounting Prnciple - Prior
to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign substdianes were consoh-
dated based on a liscal year anded November 30 due Lo the time
neaded to consolidate these subsidiaries  Effective January 1, 2011,
1he cne month lag In the consolidation of the accounts of forelgn
subsidianes was eliminated and tha year-end of foreign subsidianes
was changed to December 31 Abbott believes that the change in
accounting principle related to the edmination of the one month report-
Ing lag 1s preferable because 1 results in more contemporaneous
reporting of the rasults of foreign subsidianes In accerdance with
applicable accounuing literature, a change in subsidianes year-end Is
treated as a changa 1 accounting principle and requires retrospective
application The cumulative effect of the change was an increase n
retaingd earnings of $289 milkon as of January 1, 2009 and a corre-
sponding dlecrease n other long-term habiliies The impact of the
change was not matenal to the results of operations for the previousty
reported annual and intenm penods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
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those results hava not been revised A charge of $137 million was
recorded to Other (income) expense, net in 2011 to recognize the
cumulative Immaterial Impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financial
statements been revised, net sales, operating sarnings and net earn-
ings in 2010 would have decreased by $21 million, $195 milhon and
$175 mifion, respectively

Use of Estmates — The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples in the
United States and necessarlly iInclude amounts based on estimates
and assumptions by management Actual results could differ from
those amounts Significant estimates include amounts for sales
rebates, Income taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuation of intangible assets, itigation, denvative financlal instruments,
and inventory and accounts recelvable exposures

Revenue Recognition — Revenus from product sales is recognized
upon passage of title and nsk of loss to customers Provisions for
discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers, and returns
and other adjustments are provided for in the period the related sales
are recorded Sales incentives 1o customers are not matenal Histoncal
data 1s readily available and reliable, and 15 used for estimating the
amount of the reduction in gross sales Revenue from the launch

of a new product, from an improved version of an existing product,

or for shipments in excess of & customer’s normal requirements are
recorded when the conditions noted above are mat In those situa-
tions, management records a returns reserve for such revenue, if
nacessary In certain of Abbott's businesses, primanly within diagnos-
tics and medical optics, Abbott paricipates in selling arrangements
that include multiple delverables {e g , instruments, reagents, proce-
dures, and service agreemants) Under these arrangements, Abboit
racognizes revenle upon detivery of the product or performance of the
sarvice and allocates tha revenue based on the relative selling price of
each daliverabte, which is based pnmanly on vendor specific objectve
svidence Sates of product nghts tor marketable products are
recorded as revenue upon disposition of the rights  Revenue from
license of product nghts, or for performance of rasearch or salling
actvitios, is recosded over the penods earned

incorme Taxes — Deferred income taxes are provided for the tex effect
of differences betwean the tax bases of assets and habilties and therr
reported amounts In the financial statements at the enacted statulory
rate to be In effect when the 1axes are paid U S income taxes are
prowided on thosa earrings of foreign subsldianes whuch are intended
to be remitted to the parent company Deferred income taxes are not
provided on undistnbuted earnings remvested indefindsly in foreign
subsidianas as working capital and plant and equipment Interest and
penallies on Income tax obligations are mcludad In taxes on mcome

Earnngs Per Share — Unwested restncted stock that contain non-for-
feltable nghts to dwdends are treated as participating secunties and are
Inctuded in the computation of earmings per share under the two-class
method Under the two-ciass methad, net eamings are allocated
between common shares and participating secunties Met earnings aflo-
cated 1o common shares in 2012, 2011 and 2010 were §5 917 bilion,
$4 714 billon and $4 613 bilkon, respectively

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuanally determined cost of pension and post-employment benefits
over the service attnbution penods of the employaes Abbott must
develop long-term assumplions, the most slgnificant of which are the
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health care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected return
on plan assets Differences between the expectad long-term return on
plan assets and the actual return are amortized over a five-year penod
Actuanal losses and gains are amortized over the remaining service
attribution periods of tha employees under the corridor method

Far Value Measurements — For assets and liabilihes that are
measured using quoted pnces in active markets, total falr value 1s the
published market price per unit muttiphed by the number of units hekd
without consideration of transaction costs Assets and liabilihies that
are measured using significant other observable Inputs ang valued by
refarence to similar assets or liabities, adjusted for contract restne-
tions and other terms specific to that asset or hablity For these items,
a significant portion of far value is derved by reference to quated
prices of similar assets or habilties in active markets For all remaining
assets and liabilties, fair value is derved using & fair valus mode), such
as a discounted cash flow modsl or Black-Scholes modsl Purchased
intangible assets are recorded at far value The fair valus of significant
purchased intangible assets is based on independent appraisals
Abbott uses a discounted cash flow model to value intanglble assels
The discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the
timing and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital,
terminal values and market participants Intangible assets, goodwall
and indafinite-Iived intangible assats are reviewed for impairment at
least on a quarterly and annual basis, respectively

Shara-Based Compensation — The value of stock options and
restricted stock awards and units are amortized over thelr service
perod, which could ba shorter than the vesting penod if an employee
15 retirement eligible, with a charge to compensation expense

Litigation — Abbott accounts for Iitigation losses in accerdance with
FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies * Under ASC No 450, loss con-
tingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at managesment’s
best estimate of a loss, or when a best estmate cannot be made,

a minimum loss contingency amount s recorded Legal fees are
racordad as incurred

Cash, Cash Equwalents and investments — Cash equivalents conslst
of bark time deposits and U S treasury bills with orginal matunties of
three months or less Invesiments in marketable equity secunties and
certain investments in debl secuntes are classified as avatlable-for-sale
and am recarded at far vatue with any unrealized hokling gains or
losses, net of tax, nciuded in Accumulated other comprehensive
incoms {loss) Investments in equity secuntes that ane not traded on
public stock exchanges are recorded at cost Investments 0 other
debt secunties are classified as held-to-matunty, as managsment

has both the ntent and ability to hold these secunbies to maturity,

and are reported at cost, net of any unamortized prerum or discount
Incorne relating to thesa secunties 15 reporied as interest Income

Abbott reviews the carrying value of investments each quarter to
dotermine whether an other than temporary decline in market value
exists Abbott considers factors affacting the investes, factors afiecting
the industry the investee operates in and ganeral equity market trends
Abbott considers the length of ime an Investment's market value has
baen below carmying value and the near-term prospects for recovery 1o
carrying value When Abbatt determines that an other than temporary
decline has occurred, the investment 1s wrillen down with a charge

to Other income) expense, net

az2

Trade Recevable Valations — Accounts recalvable are stated at ther
net realizabls value The ellowance against gross trade recevables
raflects 1he best estimate of probable losses inherent in the receivables
porttolio deterrined on the basis of tustoncal expenence, specific
allowances for known troubled accounts and other currently available
information Accounts receivable are charged off after all reasonable
means 1o collect the full emount {including Itigation, where appropnate)
have been exhausted

Inventones — Inventones are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out basts) or market Cost includes material and conversion costs

Property and Equipment - Depreclation and amortization are
provided on a straight-iine basls over the estimated useful ives of the
assets The following table shows estimated useful lives of property
and equipment

Classification Estimated Useful Lives
Buidings 10 to 50 years (averags 27 years)
Equipment 310 20 years (average 11 years)

Product Liabrity — Abbott accrues for product liability claims,

on an undiscounted basis, when it is probable that a liability has been
incumred and the amount of the lability can be reasonably estimated
based on existing iInformation The fiabilties are adjusted quarterly as
addiional information becomes available Recevables for insurance
racovenes for product labilty claims are recorded as assets, on an
undiscounted basis, when it 1s probable that a recovery will be real-
ized Product habiity losses are self-insured

Research and Development Costs — Intemal research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred Clinical tnal costs incurred by
third parties are expensed as the contracted work 15 parformed Where
contingent milestone paymants are due to third parties under ressarch
and development arrangements, the milestons payment obligations
are expensed when the milestona results are achieved

Acquired in Process and Collaborations Research and Development
(IPR&D) — The inihal costs of nghts to IPRAD projects obteined In an
assat acquisition are expansed as IPR&D unless the project has an
allernative future use These costs include Inbal payments mcurred
prior to regulatory approval in connaction with research and develop-
meni collaboration agreements thal provide nghts to develop,
manufacture, market and/or selt pharmaceutical products The fair
value of IPR&D projects acquired In a business combination are
capitaiized and accounted for as mdafinite-lved ntangible assets

Note 2 — Supplemental Financial Information

{dollars n mihons)

Long-term Investmeants 2012 2011 2010
Equity secunties $213 $317 $240
Cthar 61 61 62
Total $274 $378 $302

The lvss on the extinguishment of debt of $1 35 billion relates to the
early redemption of $7 7 billon of long-term notes The loss censists
of the premium paid on the notes and the wnte off of deferred financ-
ing costs totaling $1 83 bilion and was partally offset by a gain of
$479 million related to the unwinding of interest rate swaps rolated to
a portion of the debt Other (income) expense, net, for 2012 meludes
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income of approximatety $60 milion from the resolution of a contrac-
tuat agrasment and a loss of approximately $62 milion for the
impament of certain equity secunties As discussed in Note 1, Other
{income) expensa, nat, for 2011 includes a charge of $137 milkon to
recognize the cumulative immatenal Impacts to 2009 and 2010 relat-
ing to the change n ysar end for forelgn subsidiaries In addilion,
Other {income) expense, net, for 2011 Includes $56 milion of falr value
adjustments and accretion in the contingent consideration related to
the acquisihon of Solvay's pharmaceulical business Other {income}
axpensa, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also Includes ongoing con-
tractual payments tfrom Takeda assoclated with the conclusion of the
TAP joint venture

{dollars in milkons)

Other Accrued Liabiitles 2012 2011 2010
Accrued rebates payable

Lo government apencles $1,020 $1,040 $ 900
Accrued other rebates (8) 1,079 1,030 862
All other (b) 4,689 57768 4,253
Totel $6,788 $7,855 36015

{a) Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates of $300, $239 and $216 sl December 31 2012
2011 and 2010 respectively are nelted n trade recervables because Abbolls customers
are imvoced at  fugher catalog price but ondy renul 10 Abbatl ther contract price for the
products The 2011 balances have bean revised to reflect a reclassification of certan
amaounts from Accrued other rebates 1o All other

2011 nciudes $1,500 related 10 a previously disclosad government investigation and
$400 lor acquead N process research end development 2012 2011 and 2010 snaludes
acquisiion consderation payabla of $400 rela*ed 10 the acquisiion of Pramal Haslthcam
LUimred's Haalthcare Solutions busness

®

{doilars wn milhons)
Post employment Obligations and

Other Long term Liablitles 2012 2011 2010
Defined benefit pensien plans and

post employment medicat and

dental plans for significant plans $4,557 $3,301 $2 425
Defarred income taxes 710 703 1,112
Al other {c) 3789 4,227 4488
Total $9,056 $8.231 $8,023

&) 2012 2011 and 2010 nchudas acquistion Consideration payabla of $385 $770 and
$1 150 respectvely retated to the acqusition of Pramal Hearhcare Lemitecia Healthcare
Solutions business

Ths judgment entered by the U S Distnct Court for the Eastern Disinct
of Toxas aganst Abbott in its Eiigalion with New York University and
Centocor, Inc required Abbait to secure the judgment In the event that
its appeal 1o the Federal Circutt court was unsuccessful In overturning
the distnict court's decision In the first quarter of 2010, Abbott depos-
ited $1 87 bithion with an escrow agent and considered these assets o
be restnicted On February 23, 2011, the Federal Cirount reversed

the distnct court’s final judgment and found Centocor's patent invalid
On Apnl 25, 2011 Centocor petitioned the Federal Circutt to rehear
and reconsider the decsion In June 2011 the Federal Circutt denied
Cantocor's petition and the restrictions on the funds wers Ifted
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Note 3 — Financial Instruments, Denvatives and Fair Value
Mceasures

Certaln Abbolt forign subsidianes anter into foreign currency fosward
exchange contracts 1o manage exposures to changes in foraign
exchanga rates for anticipated mtercompany purchases by those
subsldianes whosa functional cuvencies are not the U S dallar
These conlracts, totaling $1 6 bilion at December 31, 2012 and 2011
and $1 3 bilkon at December 31, 2010 are designated as cash flow
hedges of the vanabllity of the cash flows due to changes In foreign
exchange rales and are recorded at fair value Accumulated gans
and losses as of December 31, 2012 will be included in Cost of
products soid at the time the products are sold, generally through
the next twelve months The amount of hedge ineffactiveness was
not significant in 2012, 2011 and 2010

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts

to manage currency exposures for foreign currency denominated
third-party trade payables and recelvables, and for intercompany
loans and trade accounts payable where the recevable or payable 1s
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity For intarcompany loans, the contracts require Abbott lo sall or
buy foreign currencies, pnmanly European currencies and Japanese
yan, in exchange for pnmanly U S dollars and other European
curmencies For intercompany and trade payables and recelvables,
the currency exposures are pnmanly the U'S dollar, European curren-
cles and Japanese yan Al Decernber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Abbott held $18 2 bilion, $15 7 billon and $10 8 billion, respectvely,
of such foreign curmancy forward exchange contracts

Abbott has designated foraign denominated short-term debt as a
hedge of the nat Investrment in a foreign subsidiary of approximately
$615 mihon, $680 milkon and $650 miflion as of December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respactively Accordingly, changes in the farr value
of this debt due to changes i exchange rates are recorded n
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax

Abbott s a party to interes! rate hedgs contracts totaling $9 5 billion,
$6 8 bilion and $7 3 billon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respactively, to manage its exposure to changes in the fair value of
fixed-rate debt These contracts are designated as far valug hedges
of the vanahility of the fair value of fixed-rate debt due to changes n
the long-term benchmark interest rates The effect of the hedge s to
change a fixed-rate nterest oblgation to a vanable rate for that portion
of the debt Abbol! records the contracts at tar value and adjusts
the carrying amount of the fixed-rate dabt by an offselting amount
No hedge meffectiveness was recorded in income in 2012, 2011 and
2010 for these hedges

Gross unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale equity secunties
totaled $51 million, $64 milicn and $40 milion at December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively
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The following table summarizes the amounts and location of certain
darvatve financial Instruments as of December 31

{tlokars o milions) Falr Value — Assals Falr Valua — Llabiities

2012 201 2010 Balance Sheet Caption 2012 2011 2010 Balance Sheet Caption
Interest rate swaps designated 8185 $598 $138  Deferred Incomo $ 80 $ - $ 36 Post-employrment
a3 fair value hedges taxes and other assels obligations and other

long-term liabilities

Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts —
Hedglng instruments 22 115 16 OCther prepaid 11 2 10 Other accrued
Others nol designated as hadges 88 165 108 expenses and recetvables 135 179 120 liablitles
Debt designated a3 & hedge of net - - - n‘a 815 880 850 Short-term borrowings
investmant In a forelgn subsidiary

$305 $a78 $283

$841 $861 $816

The foliowing table summanzes the actity for foreign currency
forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges, debt
designated as a hedge of net invastment in a foreign subsidiary

Gain foss) Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income loss)

{dlollars m ruliions)

and the amounts and location of income (expense) and gain (loss)
reclassiied 1nto incoms and for cartain other derivative financial
instruments The amount of hedge ineftectiveness was not significant
In 2012, 2011 and 2010 for these hedges

Income (expense) and Gain (oss)
Raclassified into Income

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 Income Statement Caption
Forelgn currency forward exchange s 2 $ 685 9170 $138 5 (286) $ 63 Cost of products sold
contracts designatad as cash flow hedges
Debt designated as a hetige of 65 {30) (75) - - - n'a
nat investment in a foreign subsichary
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges nfa na n/a 62 488 248 intarest expanse
Foreign currency forward exchange nva n/a na 108 {11} 155 Nat forelgn exchange
contracts not designated as hedges {gain) loss

The inlerest rate swaps are designated as farr value hedges of the
vanabiity of the fair valua of fixed rate debt dus to changes In the
long-temn benchmark nterest rates The hedged debt 1s marked
to market, offselting the effect of marking the interes! rate swaps
to marke!

The carrying values and far values of certain financial instruments as
of December 31 are shown in the table below The carmyng values of
all other financial nstruments approximate therr estimated fair values
The counterparties to financial instruments consist of select major
international financtal nstitutions  Abbott does nol expect any losses
from nonparformance by these counterpariies

(dloBars n miltons) 2012 201 2010

Canrying Fair Camying Fair Carmrying Falr

Value Value Value Valug Valua Value

Long-term knwestment Securitlas
Equity securties $ 213 $ 213 $ 317 $ 37 $ 240 $ 240
Qther 56 81 42 62 43
Total Long term Debt {18 394) (19,588} {13,067} {15,129) {14,568} (15 723
Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts
Recehvable posiion 120 120 280 280 125 125
{Payabls) postion {148) {146} {181} {181} (130) (130}
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts
Recetvable postion 185 185 598 598 148 146
(Payable) position 80) (80) — - (36) (36)
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The following table summarizes the bases used to measure
certaln assets and habiities at fair valug on a recumng basis
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in the balance sheet
{dofars in mithons) Basls of Falr Value Measurement

Outstending Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
December 31, 2012 Balances Active Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inpuls
Equity sacuritles $ 76 $76 $ - $ -
Interest rate swap financlal Instruments 185 - 185 —
Foreign cumency forward exchange contracts 120 — 120 -
Total Assets $ a8t $716 $ 305 $ —
Falr value of hedged long term debt $ 8,832 $— $9,832 $ —
Interest rate swap financlal instruments B8O — 80 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 148 - 146 -
Contingent consideration retated 1o business comblnations 323 - - 323
Total Liablitlas $10,181 $ $9,858 $3z3
December 31, 2011
Equity securities $ 83 393 $ - $ -
Interest rate swap financial Instruments 508 - 598 -
Foreign currency forward exchenge contracts 280 — 280 —
Total Assets $ o7 £93 $ a78 $ -
Falr vatue of hedgad long-term dabt % 7.427 $— $7.427 $ —
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 181 - 181 —
Contingent consideration related to business combinations 423 — —- 423
Total Liablitias $ 8,031 $— $7,608 $423
December 31, 2010
Equity sacurities $ 75 $75 $ - $ -
Interest rate ewap financial instruments 146 - 146 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 125 — 125 -
Total Assets 3 346 875 5 2N 8 —
Fair value of hedged long term debt $ 7.444 [ $7.444 s —
Interest rate swap financlal instruments 36 - 36 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 130 — 130 —
Contingent consideration related to business comblnations 365 — — 365
Total Uablities % 7875 $-- $7.610 3365

The fair vatue of the debt was determined based on the face vahie

of the dabt adjusted for the fair value of the interest rato swaps, which
is based on a discounted cash flow analysis The farr value of the
contingent consideration was determined based on an ndapendent
apprasal adjusted for the tme value of monay, exchange and other

changes in tar value
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Note 4 ~ Post-Employment Benefits

Retirernent plans consist of defined benefit, defined contnbution and medical and dental plans. information for Abbott's major defined benefit ptans

and post-employment medical ang dental benefit plans Is as foliows

(doltars in miions) Defined Benefit Plans Medical and Dantal Pans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Projected benefit obligatons, January 1 $ 8,963 $ 8,606 $6852 1,657 51673 $1705
Sanvice cost — benefits earned during the year are 332 2688 61 85 60
Interast cost on projacted benefit cbligations 447 446 a1 a1 es 101

Losses (gains), primarity changes in discount rates, plan dasign changes,

law changes and differences between actual and estimated health cara costs 1412 608 565 148 (104) {1563}
Boneafits pald (302) {204) {269) [63) 62} (74}
Acquisition of Solvay’s pharmaceuticals business - - 1,045 - — 28
Settlament - (776} — - - -
Orther, primarity foraign cumency transtation 108 41 2786) 5 7 1
Projected benafit obligations, December 31 311,004 $ 8863 $ 8,606 $1,889 $ 1,657 $1.673
Plans’ assets at fair valus, January 1 % 6,961 $7.451 $5812 $ 389 $ 398 $ 341
Actual ratum on plans’ assets 878 20 782 48 5 55
Company contributions 379 394 525 40 40 74
Benesis pald {302} {294} (269) {80) {52) {74}
Acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business — - 763 —_ - -
Seltlernent - {776) — - - -
Crher, prmarily forelgn cumency translation a3 157 (142) — - —
Plans' assels at fair value, December 31 $ 7,949 $6.981 $7451 5 4 $ 389 $ 398
Projected benafit obligations

graater than plans assets, December 31 $ (3,055) $(2,002) ${1,155) ${1,472) $(1,268) $(1277)
Long term assels $ 69 $ 66 $ 27 8 - $ -~ 5 -
Short-term kablities {39 (35) {34} - - -
Long term labilitles (3.085) (2 033} (1,148} (1,472) (1,268) {1,277)
Net fiability $ (3.055) $(2,002) $(1,155) ${1 472) §{1,268) $1,277)
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incoma (loss)

Actuanal losses, net $ 4,742 %3822 $2,879 s ™ § 601 $ 713
Prlor service cost (credits) Al 25 30 {322) {364} {406)
Total $ 4,813 $3,847 $2,900 $ 3re $ 237 $ 307

The projected benefit obligations for non-U § dsfined benefd plans was
$3 1 billion, $2 3 bilion and $3 0 bilkon at Decamber 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively The accumulated benefit obhigatons for all
dafined bensfit plans was $9 4 bilion, $7 7 bilkon and $7 5 bilion at
Dacember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively For plans where the
accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan assets at December 31,
2012, 2011 end 2010, the aggregate accumulated benefil obiigations
ware 37 9 biion, $6 7 billon and $2 0 tuion, raspectively, the projected
benefit obligations were $9 3 billon, $7 9 bilion and $2 2 bilion, respec-
tivaly, and the aggregate plan assets were $6 2 bilion, $5 8 bilion and
$1 1 bihon, respectively

In connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott will transfer certain kabilities and assets of both defined

fdotiars i mullions)

Defined Benefil Plans

benefit pension plans and medical and dental plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated benefit obligations, projected benefit
obligations, farr value of assets and deferred gains and losses to be
assumad by AbbVie are $3 9 billion, $4 5 bilon, $3 1 bilion and

$1 9 billon, respecively, for defined benefit plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated banefit cbligations and deferred gains and
losses to be assumed by AbbVie are $501 milfion and $114 million,
respectvely, for medical and dental plans

Duning 2011, $776 milkon of assets and liabilties of a plan sponsored
by Abbott Healthcare BV, a Dutch subsidiary of Abbott Laboratones,
were Irrevocably transferred to a Dutch insurance company i full
seitlement of that plan The assels wera used to purchase an annuity
contract to fulfil the plan's obligations

Meadical and Dental Plans

N2 201 2010 2012 2011 2010
Service cos! — bensfits eamned dunng the year 3376 $332 $288 $ 81 $ 55 $ 80
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 447 448 421 81 88 101
Expected return on plans assels B11) {608) {571} (33} (34) (31}
Setllement - 40 - - — -
Amortization of actuanal losses 235 163 136 34 38 38
Amortization of prior servica cost {crediis) 4 4 4 42) (42) {22}
Tatal cost 3451 $377 $278 $101 $105 $146

36




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other comprehensive Income (loss) for 2012 Includes amortization of
actuanal lossas and pnor service cost of $235 millon and $4 rmullion,
respectively, and net actuanal lossas of $1 2 billion for defined benefit
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The faliowing table summanzes the bases used 16 measure defined

benefit plans’ assets at fair valua

{dotars in miions} Basis of Falr Value Measurement
plans and amortzation of actuanal losses and prior service credits of Guoted _ Significan
$34 milion and $42 million, respectively, and net actuanal losses of Prices i Other  Significant
$134 milion for madical and dental plans Other comprehensive income Outstandng Actve Obsarvablo Lnobservebie
floss) for 2011 includas amontization of actuarial losses and prior service December 31, 2012 Batances Markets Inputs Inputs
cost of $163 milion and $4 millon, respectively, and net actuanal losses Equities
of $1 1 billon for defined beneft plans and amortzatkon of actuana) US large cap (a) 1,731 $1.731 s - s -
losses and prior service credits of $38 miflion and $42 milion, respec- US midcap () 461 140 321 _
tvely, and net actuana) gains of $66 million for medical and dental plans International (c} 1558 &77 881 N
Other comprehensive income (oss) for 2010 includes amortzation of Fixad incoma securtlies
actuanal losses and pnor servica cost of $136 milion and $4 millon, US govemment
respectively, and net actuanal lossas of $305 mullon for defined banefit securiues (d) 843 545 208 _
plans and amortization of actuanal losses and prior service credits of Corporate debl
$38 milion and $22 milkon, respectively, and net actuanal gains of Instruments (o) 704 427 277 _
$177 milkon for medica! and dental plans The pratax amount of actuar- Non-U'S government
1 losses and pnor sarice cost {credis) ncluded n Accumulated other sacurities f) a73 101 272 _
comprehensive income {loss) at December 31, 2012 that s expected Other [g) 23 18 5 _
10 be recognized in the net penodic benefit cost I 2013 1 $175 milicn Absolute return funds () 1,041 425 825 691
and $5 milion, respectwely, for defined benafit pension plans and Commodilies 208 a 161 a8
£25 milion and ${23) millon, respactively, for medical and dental plans Other § 107 104 _ a
The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit $7.948 34177 $3,040 $732
obhgations for defined bensfit plans and medical and dental plans
Dacember 31, 2011
are as follows Equities
2012 201 2010
Py — % S 0% 5a% US large cap (a} $1,470 $1,449 s 21 $ —
USs micap () 423 152 271 -
Expoctad aggregate avaraga long term Jrternational {c) 1,217 485 732 -
change in compensation 53% 53% 51% '
Fixed income securilies
The weighted average assumptions used to determine tha net cost for US government
defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are as follows secunlies {d) 857 370 487 -
2012 2014 2010 Corparata debl
Drcount rata 50% 5 4% 5 8% instruments (e} 527 223 304 -
Expacted return on plan assets 80% 78% 78% NonUS governmant
Expoected aggregate average securilies (1) 450 228 222 -
long term change In compensalion 53% 51% 49% Other ig) 45 21 24 -
Absolute return funds (h) 1,708 334 751 624
The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental plans Commodities (i} 183 8 165 10
at December 31 were as follows Other §) 80 78 — 2
2012 2011 2010 $6 961 $3 348 $2,977 $636
Health care cost trend rate
assumed for the next year 7% 7% 7% December 31, 2010
Rate that the cost trand rate Fauitias
gradually declnes to 8 % 5% 5% U S large cap (8} $1,623 $1 499 $ 24 s -
Yaar that rate reaches the US mid cap (b} 437 162 275 -
assumed ultimata rate 2019 2019 2016 intemational () 1552 758 784 -
Fixed income securities
The discount rates used to measure labilities were determined based U S government
on high-quaity fixed income secunties that match the duration of the securties [} 793 ass 438 -
expected retires banefits The health care cost trend rates represent Gorporate dabt
Abbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health care instruments () 524 237 286 1
benelits and is a forward projection of health care costs as of the Non US government
measurement date A one-percentage point increase/{decrease) n the secunties (f} 758 172 588 -
assumad health care cost trend rate would increase/{decrease) the Other (g) 40 20 19 1
accumulated post-empioyment benefit obligations as of December 31, Absoluts retum tunds (h) 1,426 258 582 586
2012, by $274 mlior/$(222) milion, and the total of the service and Commadilies () 242 5 234 3
mterest cost components of net post-employment health care cost for Other ) 156 156 — —
the year then ended by approxmately $24 million/$(19) million $7 451 $3,622 $3,238 S50
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{a) A mix of Index furkts that track the S&P 500 (50 percent in 2012 and 45 percent in 2011
mu201mmdsapamleacmetymamedethyawumslhatwabmdwmdmlha
Russed 1000 (50 parcent in 2012 and 65 percent in 2011 and 2010)

A mix of Index funds (75 percent} and separale actively managed equity accounts

tzswomuthallrad(umbenmnwkedlolmwawmbwphdax

i) Wm:ewmmmwmlmimmwm
to the MSCI and M5CI emerging market indicas

() ndex funds not actively managed (50 percent In 2012 and 45 parceat in 2011 and 2010)
nmmpemaumwfyn\anagedamountsiﬁopwmtnmmm\GSSpumnthmn
and 2010)

(@) Index funds not actively manaped {20 percent In 2012 40 percent in 2011 and 15 percent
in 2010} and separate actvely managed accounts (80 percant in 2012, 60 percent In 2011
and B5 percent ;1 2010)

) Primarty Uneted Kingdom, Japan and insh government-tssued bonds

i) Pnmariy rorigage backed securities

() Pnmaty funds nvested by managers that have a giobal mandara with the fiexixlity 1o
afloca'a tapital broacky peross a wide range of assel classes and strareges including
but not bmited 1o equites fxed Ncome, commodibes mierest e hulums, cumences
and ather sacuntes 1o outperdorm an agreed upon benchmark with specific return and
volatiity targets

m Primarly investments in bqud commodity iuture contracts and private enerry funds

' Primanty cash and cash equivalents

[is)

Equities 1hat are valued using quoted prices are valued at the
published market prices Equilies in & common collective trust or a
registered investment company that are valued using significant other
observabla inputs are valued at the net asset value (NAV) provided by
the fund administrator The NAY 15 based on the value of the underly-
ing assets owned by the fund minus Its labiies Fixed income
secunties that ane valued using significant other observabie inputs
are valued at pnces obtaned from independent financial service
industry-recognized vendors Absolute return funds and commodities
ara valued at the NAV provided by the fund administrator Private
energy funds are vatued at the NAV prowided by the parinership on a
onae-quarter lag adjusted for known cash flows and significant evants
through the reporting date

The following table summanzes the change m the value of assets that
are measured using signiftcant uncbservabla nputs

{dollars wy mulions}) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 $636 $591 $530
Transfers in (out of) from other catagones 2 1) 414)
Actual retun on plan assets

Assets on hand at year end 59 {14) 41

Assats sold durng the year 4) (1) 2
Purchases, sales and settiements, net 39 61 59
Dacember 31 $732 $636 3591

The investment mix of equity secunties, fixed income and other asset
allocation strategies 1s based upon achieving a deslred return, balar-
g higher return, more volatide equity secunties, and lowar return,

less volatile fixed Income securties Investment allocatons are made
across a range of markets, ndustry sectors, capilalzation sizes,

and In the case of fixed ncome secunties, matunties and credit qually
The plans do not directly hold any secunties of Abbott There are no
known significant concentrations of risk in the plans’ assets Abbott’s
medical and dental plans’ assets are invested i a similar mix as the
pension plan assets

The plans' expected return on assets, as shown above is based on
management's expectations of long-term average rates of return to be
achieved by the undertying investment portfolios In establishing this
assumplion, management considers histoncal and expected returns
for the asset classes in which the plans ame invested, as well as currant
economic and capital market conditions

Abbott funds ds domestic pension plans according to IRS funding
imitations International pension plans are fundad according 1o similar
mgulations Abbott funded $379 million in 2012, $394 million in 2011
and $525 million in 2010 to defined pension plans Abbott expects
pension funding for its maln domestic pension plan of $170 million in
2013 The projected decrease reflects the separation of AbbVie from
Abbott and the transfer of certain assets and liabilities to AbbVie

Total benefit payments expected to be pad to participants, gving
effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott, which includes
payments funded from company assets as well as pald from the
plans, are as follows

Defined Madical and
{dollars i mdhons) Banefit Plans Dental Plans
2013 $ 173 %78
2014 i83 80
2015 197 83
2018 21 87
2017 224 20
2018 to 2022 1,367 510

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan 1s the princlpal defined contribution
plan Abbotl's contnbutions to this plan ware $150 mikon in 2012,
$151 milion in 2011 and $147 milhon in 2010

Abbott provides certain other post-employment bensfits, prmanly
salary continuation plans, 1o qualifying domestic employees, and
accrues for the related cost over the service Iives of the employses

Note 5 — Taxes on Earnngs

Taxes on earnings refiect the annual effecive rates, mncluding charges
for interest and penaltes Deferred income taxas reflact the tax conse-
quences on future years of differencas between tha tax bases of assats
and liabilties and therr financial reporting amounts  The $6820 millon
domestic loss before taxes 0 2012 includes Abbott's $1 35 billon net
loss on the early extinguishment of dabt and epproximately $395 milion
of separation related oxpenses U § moome taxes are provded on
those earmings of foreign subsidiaries which are intended 1o be remitted
to the parent company Abbott does not record defemed Income taxes
on sarnings reinvested ndefinttely in foreign subsidanes Undistnbuted
earnings reinvested indefinitaty In foregn subsidianes as working capital
and plant and equpment aggregated $40 0 billion at December 31,
2012 Itis not practicable to dotermine the amount of deferred income
taxes not proviciad on thess eamings Inthe U S, Abbolt’s federal
income lax returns through 2008 are seitled except for one item, and
the Income tax returns for years after 2009 are open There ane numer-
ous other mcome tax junsdictions for which tax returns are not yat
saltled, none of which ara ndwidually significant Reserves for interest
and penalias ara not significant
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Earnings before taxes, and the related provisions for taxes on
earnings, were as follows

{dollars in milions})

Earnings Bafore Taxes 2012 20M 2010
Domestc $ (620) $ 364 8 (279)
Foreign 6,883 4,835 5,988
Total $6.263 $5,189 $5713
Taxas on Earnings 2012 201 2010
Cument

Domestic $ 198 $ (586) $ 1,462
Forelgn 1,230 1,187 835
Tolal current 1,428 801 2297
Deferred

Domestic 483) 1682 (1,068
Foreign (645) {283) (142)
Total deferred (1,128) {131) (1,210)
Total $ 300 § 470 $ 1,087

Differences between the effoctive income tax rate and the U S
statutory tax rate were as follows

2012 201 2010
Statutory tax rate on earnings 35 0% 350% 35 0%
Banefit of lower foreign tax rates
and tax exemptions (24 9) (22 9) {19 4}
Resolution of certain tax posillons
pertaming 10 prior years 65 {112 —
Effect of non deductlble itigation reserve 0B g1 -
State 1axes net of federal benefit 01 ©4) 04
All other net 05 0 6) 30
Effectve tax rate on earnings 4 8% 90% 19 0%

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, total defared tax assets
were $7 4 billon, $6 3 bilion and $6 1 tilhon, respactively, and total
deferred tax habiities were $2 & billion, $2 9 bilion and $3 O billien,
respectively Abbott has incurred losses in a foreign junsdiction where
realization of the future economic bensfit 1s so remots that the benelit
is not reflected as a deferred tax asset Valuation allowances for
recorded deferred tax assels were not significant The tax effect of
the differences that give nse to deferred tax assets and labiities

were as follows

{dlollars in mittons) 2012 2011 2010
Compensation and employes benefits $1,936 $ 1,658 $1.327
Trade receivable reserves 857 432 525
Inventory reserves 21 212 293
Detered intercompany profit 1,005 i 255
State ncome taxes 107 227 233
Depreciation (75) {164) (B84)

Acquired In process research and
development and other accruals and

reserves not currently deductible 3,278 2,886 340

Other, prirnarily the excess of book

basis over lax basis of intangible assels (2,447} (2 636) (2,905)
Total 54,752 $3,3686 $ 3,065
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The following tahle summarizes the gross amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits without ragard to reduction In tex habilities or addtions to
deferrad tax assets and labiities if such unrecognized tax benefits
were seitled

{dodlars in mithons) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 £2,123 $2,724 $2,172
Incroase due to current year tax positlons 873 588 B35
Increase due to prior year lax positions 62 282 171
Decrease due to prior year lax posiions {438) {824) (84}
Settlements {163) 647) nen)
Decamber 31 $2,257 %2123 32,724

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, If recognized,
would impact the eflective tax rate is approxmately $2 0 bilion Asbott
believes that it is reasonably possible that the recorded amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by $550 milion to $650 milion,
including cash adjusiments, within the next twelve months as a result of
concluding vanous domestic and international tax matters

Note 6 — Segment and Geographic Area Information

Abbott's pnnclpal business is the discovery, development, manufacture
and sale of a broad line of haalth care products Abbott's products are
generally sold directly to retailers, wholesalers, hospitals, health care
faciliies, laboratonies, physicians' offices and government agencies
throughout the workd  Effectve January 1, 2012, certan international
operations were transferred from the Established Pharmaceutical
Products segment to the Propnetary Phammageutical Products segment
The segment information below has been adjusted to reflect this reorga-
nzation Abbolt's reportable segments are as follows

Proprigtary Pharmaceutical Products —Worldwide sales of a broad ling
of propnetary pharmaceuticat products

Estabhshad Pharmaceutical Produets —Intarnational sales of a broad
fine of branded genenc phamaceutical products

Nutnional Products —Worldwide sales of a broad line of adult and
pediatnc nutntional products

Dragniostic Products —Worldwide sales of diagnostic systermns and
tests for blood banks, hosprials, commarciat laboratories and atter-
nate-care tasting sites For segment reporting purposes, the Core
Laboratones Diagnostics, Molecular Diagnostics, Point of Care and
Ibis diagnastic dnvistons are aggregated and reported as the Diagnostic
Products segment

Vascutar Products —Worldwide sales of coronary, endavascular,
slructural heart, vesse! closwe and other medical dewice products

Non-reportable segments include the Diabetes Care and Madical
Oplics segments

Abbotl's underlying accounting records are mamtained on a legal entity
basis for governmant and public reporting requirements  Segment
disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with internal man-
agement reporting Intarsegment transfers of nventory are recorded at
standard cost and are not a measure of segment operating earnings
The cost of some corporate funchions and the cost of certaln
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employeo bensfits are charged to segments at predstermined rates
that approxmate cost Remalning costs, if any, are not allocated to
segments For acquisittons prior to 2008, substantially all intangible
assets and related amortization are not allocated to segments In addl-
tion, ne intangible assets or related amortization are aflocated to the

Established Phammaceutical Products segment The following segment
information has been prepared in accordance with the internal
accounting policles of Abbott, as described above, and are not pre-
santed in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples
applied to the consolidated financial statements

Nat Sales to Operatlng Depreciation Additions to

{dodars m mitiens) Extarnal Customers (a} Earnings (8) and Amortization Long term Assets Total Assets

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Proprietary
Phamaceuticals $18,012 $17.080 315389 $ 7,9048% 7,202 $6,592 $ 622 % 639 § 553 $ 256 $ 168 $2,7786  $12,026 $10,074 $11,421
Established
Phamaceutcals (b) 5121 5355 4,461 1,237 1254 038 156 169 148 237 183 2,804 5704 6986 6,730
Nutritionals 6471 6,008 5532 1,019 787 777 1M 183 177 458 205 163 a583 3,241 3244
Dlagnostics 4282 4,126 3794 804 766 559 315 339 244 349 408 319 3807 3429 3,482
Vascifar 3,071 3333 3,194 802 880 910 185 233 252 69 148 528 5301 5272 5,390
Total Reportable
Segments. 38,067 35900 32,370 $11,910$10909 $0776 $1,479 $1,563 $1.374  §$1,369 $1,113 §6,503  $30.521 $20 002 $30,247

Qther 2907 2951 2797
Net Sales $39,874 $38.851 $35,167

(s} Netsalkes and oporaing earmngs were unfavoribly affacted by the rilatively stronger U S dollar b 2012 and wera [avorably aflacted by the rela iely weaker U S doBar in 2011 and 2010
{) Adcitions 1o long term assets in 2010 for the Estebished Phammaceutical Producis gegment ncluda goodvall ol $2 797

{doltars i millions) 2012 2011 2010 Net Sales to
Total Reportable Segment (doltars in mitions) External Customers (d) Long term Assets
Operating Earmings $11,910 $10990 $0.776 2012 201 2010 202 2011 2010
Carporate functions and United States 16,784 $16014 $15104 $15,244 $15867 $16,769
bensfit plans costs {851) {529) {558) Japan 2441 2342 2025 1168 1,226 1,172
Non reportable segments 335 276 139 Germany 1740 1,759 1,846 6,173 5909 5850
Nat interest expense 513} {445) 448} The Netherlands 1,883 2,108 200 532 462 312
Net loss on extinguishment of deb! {1 351} — - Haly 1127 1,189 1144 222 229 242
Acqured in process and Canada 1,263 1098 1036 352 237 224
collaborations research France 1,167 1,287 1216 220 214 a7
and development (288) (673} {313) Spain 242 1063 1,066 314 203 2a1
Share-based compensalion (433} (383 {387) United Kingdom 1049 a71 888 1,346 1273 1,272
Other, net {c) (2,746} {4 046) (2 496) India 933 931 501 3467 3,460 2791
Consoldated Eamings Before Taxes $ 6263 $ 5,199 $5713 Al Other Countries 10555 10,079 8.250 6,874 7,639 B,146
Consolidated $30,874 $38851 $35,187 $35,912 $35,508 338,256

{c} Other ne*, for 2011 inciudes a charge of $1 509 netated (o a previously daciosed
government investigation Other ret for 2012, 2011 and 2010 includes charges of
51309 $402 and $881 respectvely for separa’ion rela‘ed cos's in 2012 and for cost

reduction mitiatves and In‘egraton

{clollars n rmilfons) 2012 2011 2010
Tolal Reportable Segment Assats $30,521 $29 902 $30,247
Cash, investmenis and restiicted funds 15,448 8,478 7.826
Current deferred incoma taxes 2,086 2,770 3076
Non-reportable segments 4,413 4173 5385
All other, net prdmarily goodwill and

intangible assats nol allocated

to reportable segments 13,867 15,025 14 240
Total Assels $67 235 $60,277 $60,574
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Note 7 — Litigation and Envronmental Matters

Abbott has been identfied as a potentially responsible party for
investigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations in the United
States and Puerto Rico under fedaral and state remediation laws and
15 Invastigating potential contemination at & number of company-
owned locations Abbott has recorded an estimated cleanup cost for
each site for which management believes Abbott has a probable loss
exposure No individual site cleanup exposure Is expectad to exceed
$4 milion, and the aggregate cleanup exposure is not expected to
exceed $15 milion

There are a number of patent disputes with third parbes who claim
Abbott's products infinge their patents On February 21, 2012, the
United States Supreme Court denled Centocor inc 's and New York
University's petition t¢ review a February 2011 Federal Clrcust Gourt
of Appeals decision reversing a $1 67 billon judgment 1n favor of
Centocor and New York University on a patent they claimed Abbott's
HUMIRA infinged  This decision concludes the case

The United States Departiment of Justice, through the United States
Attornay for the Western District of Virginia, and vanous state
Altorneys General investigated Abbolt’s sales and marketing actvities
for Depakote The government saught to determine whether any

of these actvibes violated chvil and/or criminal laws, mcluding the
Federa! Falsa Claims Act, the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, and the
Anti-Kickback Statute in conneclion with Medicare and/or Medicaid
reimbursement to third parties The state Atlorneys General offices
sought 10 determine whether any of these actmiies violated various
state laws, including state consumer fraud/protection statutes

Abbott recorded charges of $1 5 billion in the third quarter of 2011
and $100 million 1n the first quarter of 2012 related to cvi and cnminal
claims ansing from this matter in May 2012, Abbott reached resoluton
of afl Depakote-refated federal claims, Medicald-related claims with
49 states and the Distnct of Columbia, and consumer protection
claims with 45 states and the District of Columbia in 2012, Abbolt
paid approximately $1 6 billion for the settiement The payments were
matenal to Abbott's cash flows in 2012

Abbott estimates the range of possible loss for its legal proceedings
and envircnmantal exposuras {o be from approximately $70 mill:on
to $100 millon The recorded accrual betance at Decamber 31, 2012
for these proceedings and exposures was approximately $80 million
This acerual represents management’s best estimate of probable loss,
as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies * Within the next
year, legal proceedings may occur that may rosult in a change in the
estimated loss accrued by Abbott While it 1s not teasible to predict
the outcome of all such proceedngs and exposures with certainty,
management believes that their ultmate disposition should not have
a matenal adverse effect on Abbott's financial position, cash flows,
or resulis of operahons
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Note B — Incentive Stock Pragram

The 2009 Incentve Stock Program authonzes the granting of
nonqualfied stock options, replacement stock options, restricted
stock awards, restncted stock units, performance awards, foreign
benefits and other shame-based awards Stock aptions, replacemant
stock options and restncted stock awards and unlis compnse the
majonty of benefits thai have been granted and are currently outstand-
fng under this program and a prior program in 2012, Abbott granted
1,931,213 stock options, 2,124,743 replacement stock options,
1,134,062 restricted stock awards and 7,056,609 restricted stock
units under this program The purchase pnce of sharas under oplion
must be at ieast equal to the far market value of the commeon stock
on the date of grant, and the maximum term of an oplion is 10 years
Options vest equally over three years except for replacement oplions,
which vest in sx months Options granted before January 1, 2005
included a replacement feature Except for options outstanding that
have a replacemeant feature, options granted after December 31, 2004
do not Include a reptacemant feature When an employee tenders
mature shares to Abbolt upon exercise of a stock option, a replace-
ment stock option may be granted equal to the amount of shares
tendered Replacement options are granted at the then current market
pnce for a tarm that expires on the date of the underlying option grant

Upon a change n control of Abbott, all outstanding stock ophons
bacome fully exercisable, and all terms and conditiens of all restncted
stock awards and units are deemed satisfied Restncted stock awards
generally vest betwesn 3 and 5 years and for restricted stock awards
that vest over 5 years, no more than one third of the award vests In
any one year upon Abbott reachlng a mimmum return on equity target
Rastncted stock units vest over three years and upon vesting, the
reciplent recerves one share of Abbott stock for sach vested resincted
stock unit The aggregate far market value of restricted stock awards
and units 15 recognized as expense over the service perod Restncted
stock awards and settlement of vested restncted stock units are
issued out of treasury shares Abbott generally 1ssues new shares

for exerclses of stock options Abbott does not have a policy of
purchasing its shares relating to its share-based programs

At December 31, 2012, approximately 155 milion shares were
reserved for future grants Subsequent to year-end, the reserve was
raduced by approximately 25 million shares for stock options and
restricted stock awards and units granted by the Board of Directors

In connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott smpioyees. including those employees transfemng to
AbbVie, holding stock options or restncted stock awards or units as

of December 31, 2012 generally received one AbbVie stock oplion for
each Abbott stock option held and one AbbVie restncted stock award
or unit for each Abbott award or unit held For Abbott stock options,
the exercise pnce of an Abbot! option was adjusted 1o raflect the effect
of the separation The per share data presented below has not bean
adjusted fo reflect this adjustment on the per share amounts
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The number of restncted stock awards and units outstanding and the
weighted-average grant-clate falr value at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2012 was 14,608,595 and $50 29 and 15,506,416 and
$53 17, respectively The number of restricted stock awards and units,
and the welghted-average grant-date farr value, that were granted,

vested and lapsed dunng 2012 were B,190,671 and $56 74, 6,774,145
and $51 32 and 608,705 and $52 32, respectively The fa¥r market value
of restacted stock awards and units vestad in 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $385 million, $237 millon and $203 millon, respectively

Options Outstanding Exercisable Options

Waeighted Waeighted Waeighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average

Exerclse Remaining Exerciss Remaining

Shares Price Life (Years) Shares Price Life {Years)

December 31, 2011 85,439,279 $50 52 47 81,734,460 $50 51 45
Granted 4,055,956 60 81
Exercised (40,823,624) 4873
Lapsed (380,717) 6063

December 31, 2012 48,190 894 $51 96 40 43,052 057 §51 36 37

The aggregate intnnsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2012 was $679 millon and $633 million, respectively
The total iIntnnsic value of options exercised In 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $528 milion, $94 millon and $77 milion, respectively The total
unmscognized compensation cost related to all share-based compen-
sation plans al December 31, 2012 amounted to approximately

$174 million, gving effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott,
which is expected to be recognized over the next three years

Total non-cash compensation expense charged against incoms in
2012, 2011 and 2010 for share-based plans tolaled approximately
$433 mation, $383 million and $385 miflion, respectively, and the tax
benefit recognized was approxmately $132 mulion, $116 millon and
$119 milon, respectively Compensation cost capitaized as part of
inventory 1s not significant

The far value of an option granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was

$6 80, $6 23, and $9 24, respectively The fair value of an option grant
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mods! with the
following assumplions

2012 2011 2010
Risk free interest rate 12% 27% 29%
Average Ife of oplions (years) 60 60 60
Volaliity 21 0% 21 0% 22 0%
Dvidend yield 36% 4 1% 32%

Thea nsk-frea interest rato 1s based on the rates avalable at the time of
the grant for zero-coupon U S government 1ssues with a remasrung
tarm equal to the option's expected life The average Wfe of an oplion s
basad on both histoncal and projected exercise and lapsing data
Expecied volatiity 1s based on implied volatiities from traded options
on Abbotl's stock and historical volatiity of Abbott's stock over the
expectod e of the option Dmidend yield 15 based on the option's
exercise price and annual dvidend rate at the time of grant
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Note 9 — Debt and Lines of Gredil
‘The following 15 a summary of tong-term dabt at Decomber 31

fdollars m mifrons) 2012 2011 2010
5 15% Notas, due 2012 -1 - 13 - $ 1,000
1 95% Yen Notes, due 2013 - 321 298
4 35% Notes, due 2014 - 500 500
1 2% Notes dua 2015 (1} 3500 - -
Variable Rate Notes, dug 2015 {1) 500 —- -
2 7% Notes, dus 2015 - 750 750
5 875% Notes due 2016 - 2,000 2 000
1 75% Notes, due 2017 (1) 4,000 — -
5 6% Notas, due 2017 — 1,500 1 500
2 0% Notes, due 2018 (1) 1000 - -
5 125% Notes, due 2018 947 2,000 2,000
4 125% Notes, due 2020 597 1,000 1,000
2 9% Notes, due 2022 (1} 3,100 - -
6 15% Notss, due 2037 547 1,000 1000
£ 0% Notes, due 2030 515 1000 1,000
5 3% Notes, dua 2040 694 1,250 1250
4 49 Notes dua 2042 (1) 2,600 — —

Other, ncluding falr value adjustments
relating to interas! rate hedge contracts

dasignated as falr value hadges 85 719 225
Total net of current maturitles 18,085 12 040 12,524
Current maturilies of long term debt 309 1,027 2,045
Total canying amount 318 394 $13 067 $14,589

(1) These no’es were issusd by AbbVia Inc in Novembar 2012 Wi b the separa.on of
AbbVig on January 1 2013 Abbo't no lonper has any obligations related o this deb*

In 2012, Abboti redeemed $7 7 billon of its outstanding notes Abbott
ncurred a cost of $1 35 billon to extinguish this debt, net of gains
from the unwincing of interast rate swaps related to the debt In 2012,
AbbVie Inc , & wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, 1ssued $14 7 bilion
of long term debt with matunties ranging from 3 1o 30 years The debt
1ssued by AbbVie Inc was guaranteed by Abbott with the guarantee
expiing when AbbVie Inc saparated from Abboll on January 1, 2013

After the separation of AbbVie from Abbolt on January 1, 2013, panci-
pal payments required on long-term debt outstanding and retained by
Abbott are $309 millon in 2013 and $3 3 bilkon 1n 2019 and thereafter
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At December 31, 2012, Abbott's long term debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor's Cotporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Service
In tha third quarter 2012, Abbott replaced unused lines of credit of

$3 0 bilion and $3 7 bilhon that were 1o expire in October 2012 and In
2013, respectively, with two five-year credit facilties totaling $7 O bilion
that support commercial paper bomowing arangements One of the
credit facities totaling $2 0 bllion will support AbbVie commercial paper
borrowings after separation and expired for Abbott at the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 Abbott's weighted-average
interest rate on shart-tarm bomowings was 0 4% at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010

Noto 10 — Business Combinations, Technology Acquisitions
and Retated Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Piramal Healthcare Limited's
Healthcare Solutiong business, a leader in the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 billion, in cash, plus additional payments of $400 mil-
lion annually in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abboit recorded a

$1 6 billon hability for the present valua of the addtional payments at
the acquisition date The acquisition was financed with cash The allo-
catlon of the fair value of the acquisition resulted in the recording of
$2 7 bllkon of deductible acquired intangible assets and $1 0 billon

of deductibla goodwill Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of
trade names, customer relationships and associated nghts and are
amortized over an average of 19 years

in February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay's pharmaceuticals business
{Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $6 1 billion, in cash, plus
addnional payments of up to EUR 100 milion per year ff certain sales
milestones are met In 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $290 milion was recorded The acquisiion of Solvay
Phamaceuticals provided Abbott with a targe and complamentary
portfobo of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbolt's presence
in key globa) emerging markets Abbott acquired control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
operations are included In these financlal staterents beginmng on
that date Net sales for the acquired operations for 2010 were approx
mately $3 1 billon Pretax loss of the acquired operalions, including
acquisibon, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $385 million The acquisition was funded with cash and
short-term investments The allocalion of the fair value of the acquisi-
tion resulted in the recording of $2 2 bilion of non-deductible goodwall,
%4 1 billon of non-deductible intangible assets, $500 milkon of non-
deductible acqulred in process research and development assets, net
tangble assets of $700 millon and deferred income taxes of $1 1 bil-
llon Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of preduct nghts for
currently marketed products and are amortezed over 2 to 14 years
{average of 11 years) Acquired In-process research and development
projects are accounted for as indefinite lved intangible assets until reg-
ulatory approval or discontinuation Tha net tangible assets acquired
consist pnmanly of trade accounts recaivable of approximatety $675
lion, inventory of approximately $380 million, property and equipment
of approximately $725 rmilion, net of assumed liablities, pnmarty trade
accounts payable, accrued compensation and other llabilities

Had the acquisition of Solvay Pharmagceuticals laken place on
January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diluted earnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 tillion,
$4 B hillon and $2 96, respectively The pro forma information includes
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adjustments for amortzation of intanglble assets and falr value adjust-
ments to acquisition-date inventory as well as acquission, integration
and restructunng expenses The pro forma financial information is not
necessarlly indicative of the results of operations as they wouid have
been had the transaction been effected an the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquired STARLIMS Technologies for approxi-
mately $100 million, in cash, nst of cash held by STARLIMS, prowding
Abbott with leading products and expertise to build ts position in
jaboratory informatics A substantial portion of the farr value of the
acquisition has been allocated to goodwill and amorttizable intangible
assets In April 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of Facet
Biotach Corporation for approximataly $430 millon, n cash, net of
cash held by Facat The acquisition enhanced Abbotl's early- and
mid-stage pharmacautical pipeiing, Including a brologic for multiple
sclerosis and compounds that complement Abbott’s oncology
program A substantial portion of the farr vatue of the acquisition was
aliocated to acquired in process research and development that s
accounted for as an indefinite-lved intangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consol-
dated net sales and Income would not have been signlficantly different
from reportad amounts

Abbott's Propnetary Pharmacetiical Products segment has entered into
vanous collaboration research and devalopment agreements In 2012,
Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under development for the prevention
of acute kigney Injury associated with major cardiac surgery In patents
at ncreased nsk, and as a result of this transachion, Abbolt recorded a
charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research and develop-
ment of $110 millon In addition, in 2012, Abbott entered into & global
collaboration to develop and commerclalize an oral, next-genaration
JAK1 inhibitor in Phase il development with the potential to treat multiple
autoimmune diseases, and as a result of this transaction Abbott
racordad a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research
and development of $150 millon Additional payments of approximately
$1 2 bilhon could be required for the achievement of certain develop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement
Under ancther collaboration, Abbott was granted the nghts in 2012 to
utize up to thres antbody drug conjugate compounds and Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired In-process and collaborations research
and developrment of $28 milion Additional payments of approximately
$220 mition for each tcensed compound could be required for the
achieverment of certain development, regulatory and commercial mile-
stones under this agmement In connection with the acquisibon of
Solvay Pharmacsulicals, the achievement of a cerlain sales milesione
resulted in a payment of approximataly $134 milton in the first quarter
of 2012 for which a liability was previously established

Dunng 2010 and 2011, Abbott entered into a senes of transactions

with Reata Pharmaceuticals which included (1) a collaboration agree
mant for the jont development and commercialization of second
generation oral antixadant inflammation medutators resulting in a charge
to acquired in-process and collaborations research and development of
$400 mifion in 2011, {2} an agreernent to acquire hcensng nghts outside
the U §, excluding certan Asian markets, to bardoxolone methyl, a
product n development for the treatment of chronic kkdney disease
resulting m a charge to acqured IN-process and collaborations ressarch
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and development of $238 rmullion in 2010 and (3) the acquisition of
equity intarests in Reata of $62 millon each i 2011 and 2010 In 2011,
certain miiestones were achieved in the developmant for the treatment
of chronic kidney disease and chargaes to acquired in-process and cal-
laborations research and development of $188 milllon wera recorded

In the first quarter of 2012, $50 milkon of research and development
expanse was recorded mlated to the achievermnent of a clinical develop-
ment milestone under the license agreement The license agreement
requres additional payments of up to $150 milbon if certain development
and regulatory milestones assoclated with the chronic kidnoy disease
compound are achleved

On October 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that it is discontinuing
the Phase lil chinical study for bardoxolone methyl for chronic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to dstermine whether there 1s an appropnate path forward for
the development of bardoxolone methyl in chronic kidney disease or
other indications In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 million for the impalrment of the equlty
Investrant in Reata

In 2011, Abbott entered into an agreement with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialize a treatment for rheumatoid arthntis and psoriasis
resulting in a charge 1o acquired in-process and collaborations
research and development of $85 mition Additional payments totaling
up to $395 million basad on projected regulatory approval timehines
could be required for the achievemant of certain development, regula-
tory and commercial milestones under this agreement In 2010, Abbott
entered into an agreement with Neurocnne Biosciences to develop
and commercialize a product for the treatment of endometnosis resuit-
ing in a charge to acquired In-process and collaborations research

and development of $75 millon Additional paymaents of approximately
$500 millon could be required for the achievement of certain develop-
maent, regulatory and commercial milestonas under this agreement

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Abbott recorded goodwil of approximately $3 4 bilion in 2010 related
to the acquisitions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals businsss, Piramal
Healthcars Limited’s Healthcare Solulions business, Facet Biotech and
STARLIMS Technologies Goodwill related to the Solvay, Piramal and
Face! acquisiions was allocated to the phamrmaceutical products seg-
ments In addition, in 2010, Abbott paid $250 million to Boston
Sclentilic as a result of the approval to market the Xience V drug elut-
g stent n Japan, resutting in an increase In goodwall In the Vascular
Products segment Foraign currency translation and other adustments
increased (decreased) goodwill In 2012, 2011 and 2010 by $69 mil-
lion, ${225) millon and $(879} milkon, respectively The amount of
goodwill related to reportable segments at December 31, 2012 was
$6 3 hillion for the Propretary Pharmaceutical Products segmant,

$3 0 bilion for the Established Pharmaceutical Products segment,
$209 million for the Nutntional Products segment, $385 milkon for the
Diagnostic Preducts segment, and $2 7 billon for the Vascular
Products segmem There were no significant reductions of goodwll
relating to impairments or disposal of all or a portion of a business

The gross amount of amortizable Intangible assets, pnmanly product
rights and technology was $17 6 billon, $17 5 billion and $17 3 billion
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as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and accumu-
lated amortizallon was $9 7 billon, $8 3 bition and $6 5 bilion as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Indefinite-lived
Intanglble assets, which relate to In-procass research and develop-
ment acqurred In a business combination, were approximately $691
milkon, $814 milkon and $1 4 billon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively in 2012 and 2011, Abboit recorded impaument
charges of $82 milion and $174 million, respectvely, for certain
research and developmant assets due to changes in the projected
development and regulatory timelines for the projects The 2012
charge relales 1o a non-reportable segment and in 2011, $125 millon
related to a non-repartable segment and $49 mullion related to the
Other category in Abbott's segment reporting Discounted cash flow
anhalysis was used to analyze fair value end the charges are ncluded In
research and development expenses The estimated annual amortiza-
tion expense for Intangible assets recorded at December 31, 2012,
adusted for the saparation of AbbVie from Abbott, 1s approximately
$800 millien in 2013, $675 millon in 2014, $590 milion in 2015,

$605 million in 2016 and $565 mithon in 2017 Intangible asset
amortization is included In Cost of products sold in the consolidated
staternent of earnings Amortzable intangible assets are amortized
over 2 to 30 years {average 11 years)

Note 12 — Restructunng Plans

in 2012, Abbott management approvad plans o streamiing vanous
commercial operations in order to reduce costs and improve efficlen-
cies in Abbott's core diagnostics, established pharmaceutical and
nutritionals businesses Abbott recorded employee related saverance
charges of approxmataly $167 mullion in 2012 Additional charges of
approximately $22 milion were also recorded in 2012, pnmarily for
asset imparments Approximately $70 milton is recorded in Cost of
products sold and approximately $118 million as Seling, general and
administrative expense As of December 31, 2012, no significant cash
paymaents have been made relating to these actions

In 2011 and pnor years, Abbott management approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and developmant operations in arder to reduce costs In
2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approximatety $194 mul-
lion and $56 milion, respectively, reflecting the impalrment of
manufactunng faciities and other assels, employes severance and
other relaled charges Approximately $76 million in 2011 1s classified
as Cost of products sold, $69 milion as Research and development
and $49 milion as Selling, general and administrative  Approximately
$56 milion In 2010 Is classified as Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actmty for these restructunngs

(doflars in mihons)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 $ 145
2010 restructuring charges 56
Payments impalrments and other adjustments (124}
Accrued batance at December 31, 2010 77
2011 restruciuring charges 194
Payments, lmpalments end other adustiments 84)
Accruad balance at Decembar 31 2011 177
Payments and other adjustments {48}
Accrued balance al Decembar 31, 2012 $129




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

An additional $110 million, $25 mililon and $13 mikon were recorded
In 2012, 2011 and 2010, raspectvely, relating to these restructunngs,
primanly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved restructuring plans
pamanty related to the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals busi-
ness These plans streamiing operations, improve efficlencles and
reduce costs in certaln Solvay sltes and functions as well as in cerain
Abbott and Solvay commercial organizations in vanous countnes

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $150 millon for
employse severance and contractual cbligations, primanly related to
the ext from a research and development facllity Approximately
$142 millon 1s recorded as Ressearch and development and $8 milion
as Saling, general and administratve in 2010, Abbott recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and develepment and
Selling, general and administrative of approximately $99 million,

$152 millon and $272 milion, respectively The following summanzes
tha actnaty for thess restructunngs

{doliars i mullions}

2010 restructuring charge $523
Payments, impainments and other adjustmants {113}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 410
Payments and other adjustments {302)
Accrued balance at December 31 2011 108
Restructuring charges 150
Paymenits and other adjustments (143
Accrued balance at Dacamber 31, 2012 $115

An additional $38 milion, $102 milllon and $12 million were recorded
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvaly, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmarity for additiongt employea severance and accelerated
depreciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to streamine
global manufactunng operations, reduce ovarall costs, and improve
afiiciencies in Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge

of $28 milion was recorded in Cost of products sold The following
summarzes the actwly for these restruclunngs

{cioliars in mufions)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 %98
Paymants and other adjustments (10}
Actrued balancae at December 31, 2010 :1:)
2011 vestructuring charge 28
Payments and other aduslments {37)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 79
Payments and other adustments 23)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 556

In additton, charges of approximately $16 mition, $42 milion and $60
milion wera racorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmanly for aceeler-
atad depreciation and product transfer costs
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Note 13 — Quartery Results (Unaudited)

{ooftars m mifions except per share dala) 2012 2011 2010
First Quarter

Net Sales $0,4566  $90409 $7,698 4
Gross Profit 57317 51819 4,383 2
Nat Eamings 1,2421 8638 1,003 0
Bask: Earnings Par Gommon Shara {a} 79 56 85
Dihuted Eamings Per Commaon Shara (a) 78 55 84
Market Price Per Share-High 8149 49 45 56 79
Market Price Par Share Low 53 08 4507 52 21
Sacond Quarter

Net Sales $9,807 1 $06163  $8.8280
Gross Profit 68,1698 57458 52821
Net Eamings 1,7246 18428 12017
Basic Eamnings Per Common Share (g} 109 124 83
Diuted Earrings Per Common Share {a) 108 123 83
Markat Price Per Share High 64 47 54 24 5325
Market Price Par Shara-Low 59 04 49 05 45 28
Third Quarter

Net Sales $9,7733 898167 $8,674 5
Gross Profit 80752 5843 4 48334
Nat Eamings. 19428 3032 8907
Bask: Eamings Per Gommon Share (a) 122 19 58
Diuted Earrings Par Gommon Share (a) 121 19 57
Market Price Per Share High 7041 53 60 52 86
Market Price Per Share Low 63 51 46 29 44 59
Fourth Quarter

Net Sales $10,8369 $10377 4 $9,967 8
Gross Profit 6,777 5 65396 508228
Net Eamings 1,053 4 16167 14408
Basic Farnings Per Gommon Share (g) 5] 103 93
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (8) 56 102 92
Market Price Par Share High 7247 56 44 5375
Markat Prica Per Share Low 62 62 48 96 46 03

{a) The sum of the quarters basi earmmgs per share for 2011 and 2010 and diuted sanungs
per share for 2012 and 2011 do not add ko the full year earnngs per share amounts due to
roundng
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Management Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

The managemant of Abbott Laboratories is respongibla for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal contro! over financial raporting Abbott's
ntemal control system was designed to prowde masonable assurance o
the company's management and board of drectors regarding the prep-
aration and falr presentation of published financial statemants

Al internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent mitations Therefore, even those systems determined to
ba effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
1o financial statement preparation and presentation

Abbott’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company's
wternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012

In malang this assessment, it used the criteria set forth in internal
Control — Integmaled Framework Issued by the Committes of Sponsonng
Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our assassment,
we believe that, as of December 31, 2012, the company's internal control
over financial reporting was effective based on those critena

Abbott's Indepandent registered public accounting firm has issued an
audit rapont on their assessment of the effectivenass of the company's
intermal controt over financial reporting This eport appears on pags 47

Miles © White
Charman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C Freyman
Executve Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Greg W Linder
Vice President and Controller

February 15, 2013
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Reports of Independent Registered Pubhc Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratones

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheels

of Abbott Laboratonas and subsldiarias (the "Company™} as of
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the related consolidated
statemants of earnings, comprehensive Income, shareholders’
investment, and cash flows for the years then ended These financial
statements are the responsiblity of tha Company's management
Cur responsiblity is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits

Wa condlucted our audis In accordance with eudiling standards of the
Putlic Cempany Accounting Qversight SBoard {United States} Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audi to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial stalements are free of
material misstaternant An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidance supporting the amounts and disclosures i the financial
staternents An audit also ncludes assessing the accounting pnnciples
used and significant estimatas made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial staterment presentation We believe

that cur audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In cur opinton, such consolidated financial statements presant fady,
in all matenal respects, the financial postion of the Company as

of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the results of is
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting prnciples generally accapted in the United States
of Amanca

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,

on January 1, 2013, the Comparny distnbuted all of the outstanding
shares of AbbVie Inc , which encompasses the Company’s
research-based pharmaceuticals business, to the Company's share-
holdars As atso discussed in Note 1, in 2011 the Company changed
the year end of its foreign subsidianes from a November 30 fiscal year
end to a December 31 calendar year end

Wea have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the Company’s
internal control over financiat reporting as of December 31, 2012,
hased an the cnteria established in internal Control — Integrated
Framawork 1ssued by the Committes of Sponsonng Organzations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 15, 2013
expressed an unguaifiad opinion on the Company's internal control
over financlat reporting

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, tlinois
Fabruary 15, 2013

7o the Board of Diractors and Shareholders of Abbott { aboratones

Wa have audited the mtarnal control over financial reporting of Abbott
Laboratones and subsidianes (the "Company”) as of December 31,
2012, based on critena established in internal Control — Integrated
Framewaork 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organzations of
the Treadway Cammission The Company’s management is responsi-
ble for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for s assessment of the effectivenass of nternal controt over financial
reporting, included i the accompanying Managament Reporl on
Internat Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is 1o
express an opinion on the Company’s nternal control over financial
reponing based on cur audit

We conducted our audit In accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that wo plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
gble assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was mamtained in all material respects Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the nsk thal a matenal weakness exists, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based

on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary In the arcumstances We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basls for our opinion

A company's internal contral over financlal reporting 1s a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's pnnclpat
executive and principal financiat officers, or parsons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel 1o provide reasonable assurence regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financlal state-
ments for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles A company’s internal control aver financial
reporting Includes those polcies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
malntenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accuratety and faity
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
{2) provicde reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparabon of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and
expendiures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authonzatlons of management and directors of the company, and

{3) provice reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or dispesition of the company's
assats that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Bocause of the inherant Imitations of internal contral over financial
raporting, including the possiblity of collusion or impropar manage-
ment ovarnde of controls, matenal misstatements due to emor or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis Also, projpctions
of any evaluation of the effectivenass of the internal control over finan-
clal reporting to future porods are subject to the nsk that the controls
may bacome inadequate because of changes i condiions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion, the Company mantamad, In all matenal respects, effec-
tive Inlernal contro over financial reportng as of December 31, 2012,
based on the cntena established in Internal Control ~ Integrated
Framework 1ssused by the Commiltee of Sponsonng Organizations

of the Treadway Commission

We have also sudied, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the consoh-
dated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and our report dated February 15, 2013
expresses an ungualfied opinion on those financial staternents and
ncludes an explanatory paragraph regarding the distnbution of the
shares of AbbVie Inc 1o the Company's shareholdars and the
Company s change 1o the year end of its foraign subsidianes

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 15, 2013
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Market Price Sensitive Investments

Abbott holds avallable-for-sale equity securities from strategic
technology acauisitions The market value of these investments was
approximately $76 milion and $93 milion as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectivaly Abbott menltors these investments for other
than termporary declines in markel value, and charges Impaimment
losses to income when an other than temporary decline in value
occurs A hypothstical 20 percent decreass In the share prices of
these Investments would decrease thelr fair value at December 31,
2012 by approximataly $15 milkon (A 20 percent decreass is balieved
to be a reasonably possible near-term change In share prices )

Non-Publicly Traded Equily Sccunbies

Abbeott holds equity secunties from strateglc technology acquisitions
that are not traded on public stock exchanges The camying value of
these investments was approximately $137 milion and $224 million
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivaly No indvidual invest-
mant 1s recarded at a value in excess of $30 milion Abbott monitors
these invastments for other than temporary declines in market value,
and charges impairment losses to Income when an other than tempo-
rary decline in estimated value occurs

Interest Rate Sensiive Fimancial Instruments

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $9 5 billon and $6 B billon, respectvely, o manage
its exposure to changes in the far value of debt The effect of these
hedges 15 to change the fixed interest rate to a vanable rate Abbott
does not use dervative financlal mstruments, such as interest rate
swaps, to manage Its exposure to changes in Interest rates for its
investmen! secunties At December 31, 2012, Abbott had $1 3 billon
of domestic commercial paper oulstanding with an average annual
interest rate of 0 32% with an average remaining e of 17 days

The fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to $19 6 bilion and $15 1 bilion, respectively (averags intermst
rates of 2 9%) with matunties through 2042 At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the farr value of current and long-term investment secunties

amounted to approximately $4 6 billon and $1 7 billon, respectively
A hypothetical 100-basis point change in the interest rates would
not have a material effect on cash flows, income or marke! values
{A 100-basis point change is believed to be a reasonably possibla
near-term change in rates )

Foreign Cuniency Sensitive Financial Instruments

Certain Abbott foreign subslidianes enter Into foreign cumency forward
exchange cantracts to manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases by those
subsidianes whose functional currencies are not the U S dollar These
contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of the variabilty of the
cash flows dus to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
are markod-to-market with the resutting gans or losses reflected in
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss} Gams or losses

waill be included In Cost of products sold at the time the products are
sold, generally within the next twelve months At December 31, 2012
and 2011, Abbott held $1 6 bilion of such contracts, which all mature
in the foliowing calendar year

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to
manage its exposure o foreign curmency dencminated intercompany
loans and trade payables and third-party trade payables and receiv-
ables The contracts are marked-to-market, and resutting gains or
lossas are reflacted n Income and are generally offset by losses or galns
on the forelgn currency exposure being managed At December 31,
2012 and 2014, Abboit held $18 2 billion and $15 7 billion, respeclively,
of such contracts, which mature in the next twelve months

Abbott has designated foreign denominated short-term debt of
approximately $615 milkon and approximately $680 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, as a hedge of the net
investment In a foraign subsidiary Accordingly, changes in {he fair
value of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded
in Accumutated other comprehensive income {loss), nat of tax

The following table reflects tha total foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 201
Falr and Falr and
Weighted Carmying Woeighted Carrying
Average Value Average Value
Contract Exchange  Recelvable/ Cortract Exchange  Recelvable/
{doliars i miions) Amount Rate {Payabla) Amount Rate {Payabile)
Feceive primarily U S Doltars
in exchangs for the foliowing currencies
Euro $11,349 1317 $ (4) $10,526 1320 $102
British Pound 1,318 1621 1 1,504 1571 3
Japanese Yen 2,624 812 g 2458 803 {3}
Canadian Dollar 332 992 1 280 1026 )
Al other currancies 4 169 N/A {33) 2,544 N/A Q)]
Total $19,792 ${26) $17,300 $ 99
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Financial Review

Abbotl's revenues are derved pnmanly from the sale of a broad hne
of heatth care products under shorl-term raceivable arrangements
Patent protaction and licenses, technological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbott’s products under a contract or by
a pharmacy benefit manager most impact which products ae sold,
pnca controls, compatition and rebates most impact the net seling
prices of products, and foreign currency translation Impacis the
measurement of net sales and costs Abbott's pnmary products are
nutritional products, prescription pharmaceuticals, diagnostic tasting
products and vascular products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate Into two
publicly traded companies, one in diversified medical products and
the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomplish the
separation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVia Inc (“AbbVie®)
for its research-based pharmaceuticals business which consists
pnmariy of Abbott's Propriatary Pharmaceutical Products segment
On January 1, 2013, Abbott distributed all of the outstanding shares
of AbbVie to Abbott's shareholders As a resutt of the distnbution,
AbbVia is now an independent company trading under the symbaol
“ABBY™ Beginning In the first quarter of 2013, the histoncal rasults
of the research-basad pharmaceuticals business will ba reflected in
Abbott's consohidated financlal staterments as discontinued operations

Prior to the separation of AbbVie, sales in international markets were
approximately 60 percent of consolidated net sales Post-separation,
sales outside the U S are expacted to compnse approximately

70 perceant of net sales

Continued robust growth of HUMIRA in a broad range of indications,
the acquisshions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business (Solvay
Pharmaceuticals) and Piramat Healthcare Limited’s Healthcare
Solutions business, sales growth and margin improvement in the
nutritional and diagnostics businesses, a government investigation
of Abbolt’s sales and marketing activities related to Depakote,

and the ¢challanging economic and fiscal environment in many
countnes around the world have impacted Abbott's sales, costs
and financial position over the last three years

Phamnaceutical iesearch and development was focused over the last
three years on therapeutic areas that included Immunology, oncology,
neuroscience, pan managemant, hepatiis C {HCV), chronic kidney
disease and women's health In addition, Abbott acquired the rights to
vanous In-process pharmaceutical research and development projects
including the development of sacond-generation oral antioxiciant
inflammation modutators and an oral, nexi-generation JAK1 inhibitor
with the potential to treat multiple autoimmune diseases

In 2003, Abbolt bagan the worldwide launch of HUMIRA for theumatotd
arthntis, followed by launches for sx additional indicabions inthe U S
and eight addonal ndications In the European Unlon HUMIRA’s world-
wide sales Increased to $9 3 billon in 2012 compared to $7 9 bilion

in 2011, and $6 5 billon in 2010 Genenc competihon for TnCor began
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Austenty measures implemented by
severa) European counines reduced healthcare spending and affected
pharmaceulical pnong over the last three years TheU S propristary
pharmaceuticals business was negatively afiected by the 2010U S
heatth care reform legislabon which resulted in rebate changes begin-
ning 1IN 2010 and the payment of an annual fee beginning in 2011
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In Fabruary 2010, Abbolt acquired Solvay Phamaceuticals which
provided Abbott with a large and complementary portfolio of pharma-
cautical products and expanded Abbott's presence in key global
emarging markets The acquisiton added approximately $3 1 bilion to
Abboit's 2010 net sales, primanly cutside the U S In September 2010,
Abbott completed the acquisition of Piramal's Healthcare Solutions
business, propeling Abbott to market leadership in the Incian pharma-
ceutical market and further accelerating the company’s growth in
emerging markels Abbott recorded expense of approximately

$262 million in 2012, $345 mition in 2011 and $710 millon In 2010
related to tha integration of the Sotvay business and restructuring
plans to streamline operations, Improve efficlencles and reduce costs
pnmarily 1n certain Solvay sites and functions

In May 2012, Abbott reached resolution of all Depakots-related
federal claims, Medicaid-related claims with 49 states and the District
of Columbia, and consumer protection clalms with 45 states and the
District of Columbia Abbett recorded charges related to this matter of
$1 5 bitton in 2011 and $100 million in 2012, of which approximately
$1 6 billon was paid in 2012

In Abbott’s worldwide nutntional products business, sales were pos-
tvely impacted by demographics such as an aging population and an
increasing rate of chronic disease In developed markets and the nse

of a middle class In many emarging markets, as well as by numerous
naw product introductions that leveraged Abboti’s strong brands

At the same time, manufactunng and distibution process changes and
other cost reductions drove margin improvements across the business

In Abbott’s worldwide diagnostics business, margin improvemsnt
continued to be a key focus and operating margins increased from
14 7 parcent of sales m 2010 to 18 7 parcent in 2012

Over the tast three years, Abbott cantinued to build its Xlence
drug-eluting stent franchise with the receipt of approvat to markat
Xience Xpedition In various countnas, includng U S approval in the
fourth quarter of 2012 as well as the launches of Xience nano and
Xrence PAIME nthe U S 10 2011, and Xience PRIME and Xience V
n Japan in Apnl 2012 and January 2010, respectively Xience, which
includes Xience V, PRIME, nano and Xpedition, ended 2012 as the
markel-leading drug eluting stent globally In 2011, the third party
distnbutor of the Promus product began transitioning away from
tha product and that supply agreement ended in 2012 The effect
of the wanding down of the agreement will continue into the first
quarter of 2013

In 2010, the U S government passed haatth care reform legistation
which included an increase in Medicaid rebate rates and the extension
of the rebate to drugs provided through Medicald managed care orga-
ruzations beginning In 2010 The legislation also imposed annual fees
which pharmaceutical manufacturars began paying in 2011 and medh
cal device companies will begin paying in 2013, as well as addtional
rebates related 1o the Medicare Part D “donut hole” beginning in 2011
In addition to a 2010 one-tma charge of approximataly $60 milion (o
reduce deferred tax assets associated with retres heatth care lablities
related to the Medicare Part D retree drug subsidy, the legislation's
negatve impact on Abbott's performance grew from mare than

$200 rmillion 1n 2010 to approximalely $400 milion per year n 2011
and 2012 The $400 milon annual impact mcluded approximately
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$100 million for the annual pharmaceutical manufacturer fee This fee
s not tax-deductible and is included in selling, general and administra-
tive expanses With the separation of AbbVie at the beginning of 2013,
Abbott no longer sells phamaceutical products m the U S and there-
fore Is no konger subject to the annual phamrmaceutical fee or the
additional rebates Baginning In 2013, Abbott will begin paying the

2 3 percent medical device tax undar U 8 health care reform legisla-
ton This tax will be Included in selling, general and administrative
expenses and the amount of the tax is not expected to be material

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbolt extinguished $7 7 billion of
long-term dabt and incurred a charge of $1 35 billon refated to the
early repayment, net of gains from the unwinding of interest rate
swaps related to the debl Abbott’s short- and iong-term debt totaled
$20 5 billien at December 31, 2012 This balance includes $1 billon
of short-borrowings and $14 7 billon of long-term debt that was
1s5ued by AbbVie Inc In 2012 After the separation of AbbVie on
January 1, 2013, Abbott has no remamning obhgations related to this
$15 7 billon of debt At December 31, 2012, Abbott's long-term debt
rating was A+ by Standard and Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's
Investors Service Operating cash flows in excess of capitat expend:-
tures and cash dividends have partialy funded acquisitions over the
last three years

In 2013, Abbott will focus on several key intiatives In the nutntional
business, Abbott will continue to bulld fts product portiolio with the
infroduction of new science-based products, expand in high-growih
emerging markets and implement addrtional margln improvement in-
tiatves In the established pharmaceuticals business, which includes
international sates of branded genenc products, Abbott wilt continue
1o focus on obtaming addiional product approvals across numerous
countries and expanding its presence in emerging markets In the
diagnostics businass, Abbott will focus on the development of next-
generation instruments and other advanced technologies, expansion
In emergeng markets, and further improvements in the segment's
operating margin tn the vascular business, Abbott will continue to
focus on marketing products in the Xience and endovascutar fran-
chises, increasing international MitraClip sales, and obtaring
regutatory review of the MitraClip device inthe U S as well as further
clinical development of ABSORB, its bloresorbable vascular scaffold
(BVS) device and a further roll-out of ABSORS in numerous countries
In Abbott's other segments, Abbot! will focus on devsloping differenti-
ated technologies in tagher growth markets

Crtical Accounting Policies

Salos Rebates — In 2012, approximately 56 percent of Abbott's con-
solidated gross revenues were subject to vanous forms of rebates and
allowances that Abbott recorded as reductions of revenuas at the time
of sale Most of thess rebates and allowances are in the Propnetary
Pharmaceutical Products segment and the Nutntional Products seg-
mant Abbot! provides rebates to pharmacy benefit management
companies, state agencies that administer the federal Medicaid pro-
gram, Insurance companies that administer Madicare drug plans, state
agencias that administer the Special Supplemental Nutntion Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC}, wholesalers, group purchas-
ing organizations, and other govarnment agencies and private entities
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Rebate amounts are usually based upon the volume of purchases
using contractual or statutory prces for a product Factors used in the
rebate calculations include the identdication of which products have
been scld subject o a rebate, which customer or governmant agency
price terms apply, and the estimated lag tme between sale and pay-
ment of a rebate Using historical trends, adjusted for current changes,
Abbott estmates the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and
records the lability as a reduction of gross sales when Abbott records
its sale of the product Setllement of the rebate generally occurs from
two to eight months after sale Abbott regularly analyzes the hustoncal
rebate trends and makes adjustments 1o reserves for changes in
trands and terms of rebate programs Rebates and chargebacks
charged against gross sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
approxmately $6 2 bilkon, $5 5 billion and $4 9 billion, raspectvely, or
22 9 percent, 22 2 percent and 23 1 percent, respectively, based on
gross sales of approximately $26 9 bilion, $24 8 bilion and $21 1 bil-
lion, respactively, subject to rebate A one-percentage point increase
in the percentage of rebates to related gross sales would decrease
net sales by approximately $269 millon in 2012 Abbolt considers

a one-percentage point increase to be a reasonably likely increase

in the percentage of rebates to related gross sales Other allowancos
charged against gross sales were approximately $542 mifiion,

$409 millon and $415 millon for cash discounts in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectivaty, and $365 milion, $480 milion and $537 million

for returns in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely Cash discounts are
known within 15 to 30 days of sale, and therefore ¢an be reliably
estimated Returns can be reliabty estimated because Abboit's histor-
cal returns are low, and bocause salas returns terms and other sales
terms have remained mlatively unchanged for several penods

Management analyzes the adequacy of ending rebate accrual bal-
ances each quarter in tha domastic nutritional business, managament
uses both intarnal and externa! data avallable to estimate the level

of inventory n the distnbution channel Managemant has access to
several large customers' inventory management data, and for other
customers, utilzes data from a third parly that measures time on the
retal shelf These sources allow management to make reliable est-
mates of inventory n the distribution channel Except! for a transition
penod before or after a change in the supplier far the WIC business
In @ stale, inventory m the distnbution channel does not vary substan-
tally Managemen! alse estimates the states' processing lag time
basaed on claims data In additian, mnternal processing time 1s a factor
In estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state where the
sale 1s made, which 15 the detarmining factor for the applicable price,
15 reliably detenminable Estimates are required for the amount of WIC
sales within @ach state where Abbott has the WIC business Externat
data sources uthized for that estimate are participant data from the
US Department of Agnculture (USDA), which administers the WIC
program, participant data from some of the states, and internafly
adminstered market research The USDA has been making its data
avallable for many years Internal data includes histoncal redemption
rates and pricing data At December 31, 2012, Abbolt had WIC
business In 22 states
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In the damestic propnetary pharmaceutical business, the most
significant charges against gross sales are for Medicald and Medlicare
Rebates, Pharmacy Beneft Manager Rebates and Wholgsaler
Chargebacks |n order 10 evaluate the adequacy of the ending accrual
balances, management uses both internal and axternal data to esti-
mate the leval of Inventory in the distribution channs! and the rebate
claims processing lag tme External data sources used to estimate
the inventory in the distribution channel include inventory levels period-
ically raported by wholesalers and third party market data purchased
by Abbott Management estimates the processing lag tme based on
penodic sampling of claims data To estimate the price rebate percent-
age, systems and calculations are used to track sales by product by
customer and to estimate the contractual or statulory price Abbott's
systems and calculations have developed over tme as rebates have
bacoms more significant, and Abbott believes they are raliable

The following table ts an analysis of the four largest rebate accruals,
which comprisa approximatety 70 percent of the consolidated rebate
provisions charged against revenues in 2012 Remaining mbate
provisions charged against gross sales are not significant i the
determination of operating earnings

Domestic Propnetary
Pharmaceutical Products
Domastle Medicald  Pharmacy
Nutritionals and Banofit Wholesaler
WIC Medicara Manager Charge-
{doliars in millions) Rebates Rebates Rebates backs
Balance at
January 1, 2010 $153 $ 352 $ 239 $ 160
Provisions 618 899 B41 1,182
Payments (640) {817} {870} {1,163)
Balance at
December 31, 2010 12g 634 410 159
Provislons 575 985 831 1,361
Payments {568) {899} {735) (1,349)
Balance al
Dacember 31, 2011 138 720 506 171
Provisions B57 1,077 B30 1,645
Paymants 670) (990) 840) {1,592)
Balance &
Dacember 31 2012 $123 5 807 $ 496 $ 224

Histoncally, adiustments to pror years' rebate accruals have not been
matenal to net ncome Abbott employs vanous techniques to venfy
the accuracy of claims submitted to i, and where possible, works with
the organizations submitting claims to gamn insight into changes that
might afiect the rebate amounts For Medicaid, Medicare and other
government agency programs, the calculation of a rebate involves
interpretations of relevant regulations, which are subject to challenge
or change in interpratation
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Incoma Taxes — Abbotl operates in numerous countnes where s
income tax retums are subject lo audits and adjustments Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audn items are often very
complex, and the objectives of the government auditors can result in
a tax on the samea income in more than one country Abbott employs
intemal and external tax professionals to minimize audst adjustment
amounts where pessible In accordance with the accounting rules
ralating to the measuremant of tax contingencies, in order o recognize
an uncertaln tax benafit, the taxpayer must be more likely than not of
sustaining the position, and the measurement of the benefit is calcu-
lated as the largest amount that is more than 50 percent likely to

be realzed upon resciution of the benefit Application of these rutes
requires a significant amount of judgment Inthe U S, Abbott’s federal
income tax returns through 2009 are settled except for one item, and
the incoms tax returns for years after 2009 are open Abbolt does

not record deferred income taxes on eamings relnvested indefinitely

in foresgn subsidhanes

Penslon and Post-Employment Benelits - Abbott offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care to many of its employees
Abbott engages outside actuanes to assist in the determination of the
oblgations and costs under these programs Abbott must develop
long-term assumptions, the most significant of which are the health
care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected return on plan
assets The discount rates used to measure habilities were determined
based on high-qualty fixed Income secunties that match the duration
of the expocted retree benefils The health cara cost trend rates repre-
senl Abbott's expected annual rates of change In the cost of health
care banafits and is a forward projoction of health care costs as of the
measurement date A difference between the assumed rates and tho
actual rates, which will not be known for decades, can be significant
in relation to the obligations and the annual cost recorded for these
programs Low asset retums due to poor market conditions and low
interest rates have significantly increased actuanal losses for these
plans At December 31, 2012, pretax net actuarial losses and pnor
service costs and [credis) recognized In Accumulated other compre-
hensive ncoma (loss) for Abbott's defined benefit plans and medical
and dental plans were losses of $4 8 bilion and $379 million, respec-
tvaly Actuanal lossas and gains are amoertized over the remaining
service altnbutlon panods of the employees under the corndor
method, in accordance with the rules for accounting for post-employ-
mant banefits Diffarencas between the expected long-term return on
plan assets and the actugl annual return are amartized over a five-year
penod Note 4 to the consolidated financlal statements descnbes the
impact of a one-percentage point change in the health care cost trend
rate, however, thera can be no certainty that a change would be km-
ited to only one percentage point

Valuation of intangible Assets — Abbatt has acquired and continues

to acquwe significant INtangible assets that Abbott records at farr value
Transactions involving the purchase or sale of intangible assets occur
with some frequency between companies in the health care field and
valuations are usually based on a discounted cash flow analysis The
discounted cash flow moded requires assumptions about the tming
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and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital, tarminal
vajues and market participants Each of these factors can significantly
affect the value of the Intangible asset Abbott engages Independent
valuation experts who review Abbott's critical assumptions and
calkeulations for acquisitions of significant intangibles Abboll reviews
definlte-lved intanglble assets for impaiment each quarter using an
undiscounted net cash flows approach If the undiscounted cash
flows of an Intanglble asse! are less than the canying value of an
intangible asset, the intang:ble asset is written down to its fair vaiue,
which 15 usually the discounted cash flow amount Where cash flows
cannot be identdied for an indmidual asset, the review s applied at the
lowest group level for which cash flows are kientifiable Goodwill and
indefinte-Iived intangible assets, which relate 10 in-process research
and development acquired In a busmess combination, are reviewed
for impatrment annually or when an event that could result m an
impairment occurs At Dacember 31, 2012, goodwill end intangibles
amountad to $15 8 bition and $8 6 billion, respectively, and amortiza-
tion expanse for intangible assets emounted to $1 4 bllkon i 2012
Thera wera no Impairments of goodwill In 2012, 2011 or 2010 In 2012
and 2011, Abbott recorded Impaimment charges of $82 millon and
$174 million, respectively, for certaln research and devalopment assets
due to changes In the projected development and regulatory timetnes
for the projects

Litigation — Abbott accounts for iitigation losses in accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification No 450, “Contingencies *
Under ASC No 450, loss contingency provisions are recorded for
probable fosses at managament's bast estimate of a loss, or when a
best estimate cannot be made, a minimum loss contingency amount
18 recorded These estimates are often inittally developed substantially
sarlier than the ullimate loss 15 known, and the estimates are refined
each accounting period as additional information becomes known
Accordingly, Abhott is often initially unable to develop a best astimate
of loss, and therefore the minimum amount, which could be zera,

15 recorded As information becomes known, either the mimimum loss
amount is increased, resutting in additional loss provisions, or & best
estimate can be mads, also resuling in additional loss provisions
Occasionally, a best estimate amount 15 changed 10 a lower amount
whan events rasult in an expeciation of a mere favorabls outcome than
previously expected Abbott estimates the range of possible loss to be
from approximately $70 milion to $100 million for is legal proceadings
and emironmental exposures Accruals of approximalely $80 million
have besn recordad at December 31, 2012 for these procesdings and
exposures These accruals reprosent management's best estimate of
probabie loss, as defined by FASEB ASC No 450, "Contingencies *

Results of Operations
Sales

The following table detalls the components of sales growth by report-
able sagment for the last three years

Total Components of Change %

% Change Price Volume  Exchange
Total Net Sales
2012vs 2011 28 17 38 (2 9)
2011 vs 2010 105 12 85 28
2010vs 2009 143 oy 132 12
TotalU S
2012vs 2011 48 56 {0 8) -
2011 vs 2010 54 44 10 -
2010 vs 2009 68 o7 61 —
Tolal International
20M2vs 2011 1 (0 71 (30}
2011 vs 2010 143 na 106 49
2010vs 2009 207 (0 8) 193 22
Propristary Phammaceutical Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 55 45 a7 27}
2011 vs 2010 10 35 52 23
2010vs 2009 1386 03 127 06
Established Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012vs 2011 4 4) 13 34 (6 5)
2031 vs 2010 200 an 174 43
2010 vs 2009 S517 {©3) 481 29
MNutdtonat Products Segment
2012 vs 201 77 45 42 (10
2011 vs 2010 86 30 386 20
2010 vs 2009 47 17 12 18
Dragnostic Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 40 {1 4) BT @33
2011 vs 2010 88 11 65 4
2010vs 2009 60 01 43 16
Vascular Producis Segment
2012 vs 2011 79 52} ©4) {2 3)
2011 va 2010 44 43 55 32
2010 vs 2009 186 47 223 t0

Total Net Sales in 2012 reflect unit growth, partially ofset by the
impact of unfavorable foreign exchange The decrease in 2012
Vascular Products sales is partially due to the winding down of royalty
and supply agreements related to certan third-party products, includ-
ing Promus  Excluding this royalty and supply agreement revenue in
both penods and the unfavorable effect of exchange, Vascular
Products salkes increased 3 4 percent m 2012 In 2011 and 2010,
Total Nat, Total U S , Total International, Proprietary Pharmaceutical
Products segment and Established Phamaceutical Products segment
sales reflect the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business on
February 15, 2010 and unit growth, while the relathaly weaker U S
dollar favorably impacted international sales across &l segments

Total Net, Total International and Estabished Pharmaceuticat Products
segment sales growth in 2011 also reflects the acguisition of Pramal
Healthcare Limited’s Heatthcare Solution business in September 2010
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A comparison of significant product and product group sales is as
follows Percent changes are versus the prior year and are based on
unroundad numbers

Percent Percant Parcent

{dollers i milhons) 2012 Change 2011 Change 2010 Change

Propristary Pharmaceuticals —

Totel U S

Proprietary sales $10,158 7 $9.455 8 $B,744 12
HUMIRA 4,376 28 3,427 19 2,872 14
TRILIFIX/ ThCor 1,098 (20 1372 1 1355 1
Niaspan i1 {} a78 5 827 8
AndroGel 1,152 32 874 35 649 n/m
Lupron 569 5 540 12 483 {11}
Symttvord 551 B 522 16 451 <]
Creon 353 7 332 35 248 nm
Kalatra 280 {14} 326 {10} 363 (19}

Total International

Propriatary sales 7,854 3 7,825 15 6,645 16
HUMIRA 4,889 a9 4505 23 3678 24
Kalatra 733 (13} 844 {5} 892 (3
tupron 231 {14} 270 2 285 2

Total Established

Pharmacsiticals — 5121 {4y 5355 20 4481 52
Clanthromycirn 501 )] 551 6 521 {11}
TnCor and Lipanthyf
{fenofitrate) 282 5 308 24 248 n/m
Craon 306 4 206 58 187 n/m
Serc 205 (12 233 3o 180 m
Duphaston 259 16 223 64 136 n/m
Synthroiet 105 1 103 2] 95 19

Nutritionals —

U $ Pedatric Nutriionals 1,445 14 1,268 5 1,208 N

intermationa! Padlatric

Nutritionals 2,080 8 1,926 5 1,676 o)

U'S Adult Mutritionals 1,452 6 1368 2 1,345 6

International

Adult Nutntionals 1,484 4 1,427 13 1268 15

Diagnostics —

Immunochamilsiry 3,279 4 3,180 8 2,904 4

Vascular Producets (1} —

Xience 1599 3 1,658 14 1,370 40

Cther Coronary

Products 598 i 605 9 655

Endovascular 452 1 449 9 414 5

n/rn — Percent change 1s not meaningful

{1} Orher Coronary Procucts nclude pomardy guidewres and balloon ca he'ers
Endovascular includes vessel closure carohd slonts and olher penpheral products
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Excluding the negative effect of exchangs, Total International
Propriotary sales increased 8 9 percent in 2012 In Proprietary
Pharmaceuticals, a ganenc version of TriCor emtered the U S market
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Total Established Pharmaceutical
Products sales decreased in 2012 due to tha negative effect of
exchange and decreased sales of Clarithromycin and Serc due to,

in part, pricing pressures in Eurape, partially offset by growth in
emerging markets Excluding the effect of exchange, Tetal Established
Pharmaceutical Products sales increased 2 1 percent U S Pediatnc
Nutrtional sales in 2012 reflect market shar gains for Stmrac and
unit growth for PediaSure The increase In 2012 U S Adult Nutntional
sales reflects unit growth for the £nsure and Glucerna products
International Pediatric and Adult Nuintionals sales increases over

the three years wera due primanly to volume growth in developing
countnes and were negatively impacted in 2012 by tha effact of the
relativety stronger US dollar

The increases in U § Prapnetary product sales in 2011 and 2010

are primanly due to increased sales of HUMIRA and the acquisttion of
Salvay Pharmacseuticals In February 2010, partially offset by decreased
sales of Dapakote, Zemplar, and Kaletra The increases in Established
Pharmacsutical salas in 2011 and 2010 are primanly due to the acqui-
siions of Solvay Pharmaceuticals and Piramal and growth in emerging
markets U S Pediatnc Nutntonals sales in 2011 and 2010 were
affected by the voluntary recall of certain Smilac-brand powder infant
formulas in September 2010 and the subsequent recovery in market
share in 2011 Intemational Propristary Pharmaceuticals, International
Adult Nutationals and Immunochermstry sales wem positively
yimpacted by the effect of the relatively weaker U S dollar in 2011

and 2010 Abboil has penodically sold product nghts to non-strategic
products and has recordad the related gains in net sales in accor-
dance with Abbott's revenus recognition policies as discussed n

Note 1 to the consolidated financlal statements Related net sales
were approximately $58 milion in 2010, while there were no significant
sales in 2012 and 2011

The expiration of lcenses and patent protection and generic competi-
tion can affect the future revenuas and operating ncome of Abbott
There are currently no significant patent or boense expiralions n the
next three years that are expected to affect Abbott after the separation
of AbbVie

Operating Larmngs

Gross profit margins were 62 1 percent of net sales n 2012, 60 0 per-
cent 1n 2011 and 58 3 percent n 2010 Tha increase in the gross profit
margin in 2012 was impacted by improved gross margins across all
reportable segments as a result of cost reduction Imtiatives, the impact
of exchange and favorable product mix The increasa in the gross
profit margin in 2011 was due, In part, to mproved margins xi the
established pharmaceutical, dagnostics and diabetes businesses and
was partially offset by the unfavorable effect of exchange on the profit
margin rabo  The increase in the gross profit margin in 2010 was due,
in part, to improved marging In the established pharmaceutical, vascu-
lar, diabstes, diagnostics and nutntional businesses and the favorable
ffect of exchange on the gross profit margin rato
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Inthe U S, states receve pnce rebates from manufacturers of infant
tormula under the federally subsidized Speclal Supplemental Nutnibon
Program for Women, Infants, and Chlidren There are also rebate
programs for pharmaceutical products in numerous countries Thesa
rebate programs continue to have a negatwve effect on the gross profit
margins of the Nutritional, Proprietary Pharmaceutical and Established
Phamaceutical Products segments

Research and development expense was $4 322 bllion in 2012,

$4 120 bilion n 2011 and $3 724 billon in 2010 and represented
Increases of 4 7 percent in 2012, 10 9 parcent in 2011 and 35 7 per-
cent In 2010 Excluding charges related 1o the Solvay restructurings
announced in September 2010, research and development expense
increased 6 2 percent in 2011 and 29 4 percent in 2010 The 2010
Increass, exclusive of the effects of the restructuring charges, reflecls
the acquisitions of Soivay's pharmaceuticals business In February
2010 and Facet Biotech in Apnl 2010 The increases in 2012, 2011
and 2010 also reflect continued pipeline spending, including programs
in biologics, hepatitls C and diagnostics The majonty of research and
develapment expenditures over the three years were concentrated

on pharmaceutical products $2 9 billion of Abbott’s 2012 ressarch
and development expenses related to Atbott's pharmaceutical
products, of which $2 2 billon was dectly allocated to the Propristary
Pharmaceutical Products segment In 2012, research and develop-
ment expancitures totaled $367 million for the Vascular Products
segment, $382 million for the Diagnostics Products segment,

$275 mithon for the Established Pharmaceutical Products segmeant
and $188 mihon for the Nutntional Products segment

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 5 6 percent in
2012 and increased 22 9 percent in 2011 and 23 4 percent In 2010
2012 includes approxmately $405 million related to the separation of
Abbvis from Abbott and a $100 millon Iihgation charge related to the
government nvestigation related to Dapakote while 2011 includes a
Iiigation charge of $1 5 billon related to the Depakote invastigation
Excluding separation costs, liigation charges and Scivay-related
restructunng and integration costs, selling, general and admirustrative
axpensas increased 4 6 percent in 2012 and 6 7 percent In 2011
Excluding charges related to Solvay restructunng and integration proj-
acts, solling, general and administrative expenses in 2010 ncreased
18 2 percent This Increass, exclusive of the effects of the restructuring
and intagration charges, reflects the acquisions of Solvay’s pharma-
ceuticals business in 2010 and Advanced Medical Oplics, Inc 1n 2009
and higher provisions for itigation in 2010 The remalning increases In
selling, general and administrative expenses over the three year penod
ware dus prnmanly 1o increased sefing and marketing support for new
and existing products, Including continuad spending for HUMIRA,
inftation, and m 2011, the impact of the phammaceutical fee imposed
by U S healthcare reform legislation

Reastructunngs

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans to streamling vanous
commercial aperations In order 1o reduce costs and Improve etficien-
ctes in Abbotl's core diagnostics, established pharmaceulical and
nutntionals busmasses Abbott recorded employes related saverance
charges of approximately $167 millign in 2012 Additional charges of

approximately $22 milion were also recorded in 2012, primanly for
assst iImpalrments Approximately $70 milion Is recorded in Gost of
products sold and approximately $119 milion as Seling, general and
administratve expanse As of Dacember 31, 2012, no significant cash
payments have been made relating to these actions

In 2011 and prior years, Abbott managemant approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufacturing
operations and selectad domestic and Internabional commerclal and
rassarch and davelopment operations in order to reduce costs

In 2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approxmately

$194 mitton and $56 million, respectively, reflocting the Impairment
of manufactunng facitles and other assels, employee severance and
other related charges Approximatety $76 milion in 2011 is classified
as Cost of products soid, $69 milion as Research and developrment
and $49 milion as Selling, general and administrative Approximately
$56 millon in 2010 1s classified as Cost of products soid The following
summarizes the actmty for these restructurings

{oodiars in milons)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 $145
2010 restructunng charges 56
Payments, impalrments and other adjustments {124)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 77
2011 restructuring charges 194
Paymants, impakments and other adjustments (94)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 177
Payments and other adjustments (48)
Accruad balance at December 31, 2012 $120

An addional $1 10 milkon, $25 milhon and $13 million were recorded
In 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to these restructunngs,
prmanly for accelerated daprectation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved restructunng

plans pnmanly related to the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals
business These plans streamiine operations, improve efficlencies and
raduce costs In certaln Solvay stes and functions as well as in certain
Abbott and Solvay commercial orgamzations in vanous counines

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $150 million for
employese severance and confractual obigations, pnmanly related

to the exit from a research and development facility Approximately
$142 million 1s recorded as Research and development and $8 million
as Seliing, goneral and administrative In 2010, Abbolt recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and devalopment and
Seling, general and administrativa of approximatety $99 millon,

$152 million and $272 milhon, respectively The following summanzes
the activity for these restructurings

{dollars in millions)

2010 restructuring charge $523
Payments, impalrmants and other adustments {113)
Actiued balance at December 31, 2010 410
Payments and other adisstments (302}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 108
Restructuring charges 150
Payments and other adjustments {143)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 %115
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An addtional $38 miion, $102 milion and $12 milion were recorded in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to these restructunngs, pn-
manly for addional employes severance and accelerated depraciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to streamline
global manufactunng operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
efficlencies In Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge

of $28 million was recorded In Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actmly for these restructurings

{dollars in millions)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 598
Payments and other adjustments (10}
Accrued batance at December 31, 2010 2131
2011 restructuring charge 28
Payments and other adjustments {37}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 70
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Accrued balance at Decembar 31, 2012 556

In addition, charges of approximately $16 milkon, $42 million and
$60 mitton were recorded i 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmanly for aceel-
erated depreciation and product transfer costs

Interest expanse and Interest (income}

In 2012, interast expense increased pnmarly dus to bridge faclity
foes related to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott In 2011, interest
expensa decreased dus lo lower debt levels Interest income in 2012
and 2011 decreased as a resull of lower rates In 2010, interest
expense increased due pnmanly to increased debt lovels Interest
incoma decreased in 2010 due to lower investment balances

Change in Accounting Principle and Other (income) expense, net

Pror to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidianes were
consolidated based on a fiscal year ended November 30 due to the
time needed to consolidate these subsidiarles Effectve January 1,
2011, the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of
foreign subsidianias was eliminated and the year-end of foraign subsid-
1anes was changed to December 31 Abbotl believes that the change
in accounting principle related to the ekmnation of the one month
reparting lag 1s preferable because it results 1 more contemporaneous
reporting of the resulls of forexgn subsidianas In accordance with
applcable accountng iterature, a change in subsidianes’ yoar-end is
treated as a change In accounting pnnciple and raquires retrospective
appheation The cumulative effect of the change was an Increase in
retamad earnings of $289 million as of January 1, 2009 and a cormre-
sponding decrease In other lang tarm llablities The Impact of the
change was not matenal to the results of operations for the previousty
reported annual end Intenm peniods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
those rasults have not been evised A charge of $137 mulion was
recordad 1o Other (income) expense, net in 2011 to recognize the
cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had ihe financial
statemants besn revised, net sales, operating earnings and net eam-
ings in 2010 would have decreased by $21 milion, $195 milion and
$175 million, respactvely
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Other {income) expense, net, for 2012 includes income of approx-
mately $60 million from the resolution of a contractual agreament and
aloss of gpproximatsly $62 milkon for the Impairment of certain equity
securities Other (incomea) expense, nat, for 2011 includes $56 milllon
of falr value adjustrnents and accretion in the contingent consideration
related to the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceutical business Other
{income) expenss, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongo-
ing contractual payments from Takeda associated with the concluslon
of the TAP joint venture

Net Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 billion of
long-term debt Abbott ncurmed a cost of $1 35 bilion to extmguish
this debt, net of gains from the unwinding of nterest rate swaps
related to the debt

Taxes on Earnings

The income tax rates an eamings were 4 8 percant 1n 2012, 9 0 per-
cant 1 2011 and 19 0 percent in 2010 Taxes on earnings In 2012
reflact tha $493 millon effect of the tax rate applied to Abbott’s net
debt extinguishment loss as well as the recognition of $408 milion of
tax benefits as a result of tha favorable resclution of vanous tax posi-
tions partaining to a pnor year, which alsc decreased the gross
amount of unrecognized tax bensfits by approximately $560 milion
Taxas on earnings In 2011 reflect the effect of the tax rate applied to

a ligation reserve and the recognition of $580 millon of tax benelits
as a resull of the tavorable resolution of vanous tax positions pertaining
to prior years, which also decreased tha gress amount of unrecog-
nized tax benefits by approximatety $1 3 bilion Exclusive of these
discrete items, the effeciive rates are lower than the U S federal
statutory rate of 35 percent due pnmarily to the benefit of lower foreign
{ax rates and tax exemnptions that reduced the tax rates by 24 8, 22 9,
and 19 4 percentage paints n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely

The tax rate reductions are pnmanly denved from operations in

Puerto Rico, Switzeriand, Ireland and Singapore where Abbott benefits
from a comnbination of favorable statutory tax rules, tax rulings, grants,
and exemptions See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
for a full reconciliation of the stfective tax rate to the U S federal
statutory rate

As a result of the Amencan Taxpayer Rebef Act of 2012 signed into
law in January 2013, Abbott expects to record a tax benefit of
approximately $100 milllon in the first quarter of 2013 for the retroac-
tive extanslon of the resaarch tax credit and the loak-through rules
of section 954(c){B) of the Internal Revenue Code to the beginning

of 2012 Excluding this and any other discrete items, Abbott expects
o apply an annual effectve rate of approximately 21 percent

As a result of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the
Haalth Care and Education Reconcilation Act which wera signed into
law In 2010, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $60 millon in
2010 to mduce deferred tax assets associated with retires health care
abilies related to the Medicare Part D retiree drug subsidy

In October 2010, Puerto Rico snacted legistation that assesses a tax
beginning in 2011 en certain products manufactured in Puerto Rico
The tax is levied on gross intercompany purchases from Puerto Rican
entities and is inciuded in mventory costs In 2012 and 2011, cost of
goods sold included $187 mifion and $111 milion, respectively,
related 10 this tax The tax 1s creditable for U § income tax purposes
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Research and Development Programs

Abbott currently has numerous pharmaceutical, medical and nutntional
products in development

Research and Development Process

In the Proprietary Pharmaceuticals segment, the research and
development process generally begns with discovary research which
focuses on the identrdication of a molscule that has a dasired effect
apalnst a given disease If pracknical testing of an identified compound
proves successful, the compourkd moves into clincal development
which generally includes the following phases

« Phase | — involves the first human tests in a small number of
haatthy voluntgers to assess tolerabllity and potential dosing

* Phase Il — tests the molecule’s efficacy against the dissase
in a small group of patients

s Phase lll — tests a molecule that demonstrates favorable results
n the earlier phases in a significantly larger patient poputation to
further demonstrate efficacy and safety based on regulatory cntena

The climical tnals from all of the development phases provide the
data required to prepare and submit a New Drug Application (NDA),
a Buological License Application (BLA) or other subrmssion for regula-
tory approval to the U § Food and Drug Administration {FDA) or
similar govarnment agencies outside the U S The specific require-
monts (e g , scope of clinical trials) for obtaning regulatory approval
vary across different countries and geographic regons

The research and davelopmaent procass from discovery through

a naw drug taunch typically takes 8 - 12 years and can be even longer
Thera is a significant amount of uncertainty inherant in the research
and davelopment of new pharmaceutical products and there Is no
guarantea when, or if, a molecule will recetve the regulatory approval
required to launch a new drug or indication

In addition to the development of new products and new formulations,
propnetary pharmaceutical research and development projects also
may include Phass IV trials, sometimes called post-marketing studies
For such projects, clinical tnals are designed and conducted to collect
additonal data regarding, among other parameters, the benefits and
nsks of an approved drug

In the Established Pharmaceuticals segment, the development
process focusas on the geographic expansion and continuous
impravement of the segmant's existing products to provide benefits
to patients and customers As Established Phanmaceuticals doos
not actively pursue pamary rasearch, development usually begins
with work on existing products or after the acquisition of an advanced
stage licensing opportunity

Depending upon the product, the phases of development may include
« g product development

+ Phase | biosguvalence studies to compare a future Established
Pharmageutical's brand with an already marketed compound with
the same active pharmaceutical ingredient (AP
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« Phase !l studies to test the efficacy of benefits in a small group
of patients

+ Phase Il studies to broaden the testing to a wider population that
reflacts the actual medical use

* Phass [V and other post-marketing studies to obtain new cknical
use data on existing products within approved indications

The specific requirements (e g scope of clinical tnals) for obtaining
ragulatory approval vary across different countnes and geographic
reqions The process may range from one year for a bioequivalence
study project to 6 or more years for complex formutations, new indica-
tions, or geographic expansion i specific countnes such as China

In the Diagnostics segment, the phases of thea research and
development process include

« Discovery which focuses on identification of a product that will
address a speciic Iharapeutic area, platform, or unmet clmical need,

» Concept/Feasibility during which the matenals and manufacturing
processes are evaluated, testing may Include product charactenza-
tion and analysis is parformed to confirm clinlcal utility, and

+ Development dunng which extensve testing 1s performed to
demonstrate that the product meets speciiied design requirements
and that tha design spectfications conform to user needs and
intended uses

As with pharmaceutical products, the regulatory requirsments for
diagnostic products vary across different countries and geographic
regions Inthe U S, the FDA classifiss diagnostic products into
classes {, i, or If) and the classification deterrmnes the regulatory
process for approval While the Diagnostics segment has products
in all three classes, the vast majonty of its products are categonzed
as Class i or Class Il Submission of a separate regulatory filing 1s
not required for Class | products Class il devices typically require
pra-market notification to the FDA through a regulatory filng known
as a 510(k} subrmisslon Most Class Ill products are subject to the
FDA's Pra-Marketing Approva!l (PMA) requirements Other Class (Il
products, such as those usad to scresn blood, require the submission
and approval of a BLA

In the EU, diagnostic products are also categonzed into different cate-
gones and the regulatory process, which is governed by the European
In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Device Directive, dapends upon the cate-
gory Certan product categones require review and approval by an
independent company, known as a Notified Body, befere the manufac-
turer can affix a CE mark to the product to show compliance with the
Drrective Other products only require a self-certfication process

In the Vascular segment, the research and development process
begins with research on a specific tachnology that 13 evaluated for
feaslbilty and commerclal viability If the research program passes that
hurdle, ¢ movas forward into development The development process
includes evaluation and selection of a product design, completion of
clinical tnals to tast the product’s safety and efficacy, and validation of
{he manufactunng process 1o demonstrate its repeatability and ability
te conslstently mest pre-datermined specifications
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Similar to the diagnostic products discussed above, Inthe U S,
vascular products are classified as Class |, ll, or Hl Most of Abbolt’s
vascular progucts are classified as Class Il devices that follow the
510{K) regulatory process or Class lll devices that are subject to the
PMA process

In the EU, vascular products are also categonzed into different classes
and the regulatory process, which Is governed by the Eurcpean
Madical Device Directive, vanes by class Each product must bear

a CE mark to show compliance with the Directive Some products
require submission of a design dossier to the appropnate regulatory
authority for review and approval pror to CE marking of the device
For other products, the company is required to prepars a technical
fila which includes testing results and clinical evaluations but can
self-certdy its ability to apply the CE mark to the product Outslde the
US and the EU, the regutatory requirements vary across different
countnes and regions

After approval and commercial launch of seme vascular products,
post-market tnats may be conducted elther due to a conditonal
requirement of the regulatory market approval or with the abjectiva
of proving product superiority

In the Nutntionat segment, the research and development process
genarally focuses on identifying and developing ingredients and prod-
ucts that address the nutrtonal needs of pariicular populations {e g,
infants, athletes) or patients (e g . people with diabetes} Depending
upon the country and/or reglon, if claims regarding a product's efficacy
will be mads, clinical studies typically must be conducted Most other
product development, such as a product form change from liquid to
powder, generally does not necessitate chnical studies

Inthe U S, the FDA requires that it be notfied of proposed new
formulations and formulation or packaging changes related to infant
formmula products Prior to the launch of an mtant formula or product
packaging change, the company 15 required to obtain the FDA's
confirmation that It has no objections to the proposed product or
packaging For other nutrtion products, notificalion or pre-approval
from the FDA 1s not requered unless the product mcludes a new food
addtive In some countnes, regulatory approval may be required

for cartain nutntional products, including infant formula and medical
nutntional products

Areas of Focus

In 2013 and beyond, Abbott's significant areas of therapeutic focus
will include the following

Established Pharmacsulicals — Abbott s actvely working on plans for
about 20 - 30 key brands Depending on the product, the development
actvties focus on new data, markets, formulations, combinations,

or indications  Abbott tocuses on buiding country-specific portfolios
made up of global and local pharmaceutical brands that best meet
each local market's needs Over the next several years, Established
Pharmaceuticals will work to expand the market for many of its
products through registrations across multiple gecgraphies, including
key emarging markets
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Vascular ~ Ongoing projects in the pipsline include

« Xence Xpedition, our next-gsneration drug-sluting stent ([DES}
with enhanced delverabilty and an expanded size matrix it utirzes
the Xience PRIME stent, everoimus and biocompatible coating
technology but incorporates new catheter technology for improved
deliverablity Xience Xpedition received U S regulatory approval
in December 2012 and 15 also available In Europe and parts of
Asla and Latin Amenca Abbott expects to launch the product in
additional markets in 2013

¢ Absorb, the word's first drug eluting biomsorbable vascular
scaffold (BVS) device for the treatment of coronary artery diseass
that Is gradually resorbed into the vessel wall In January 2013
Abbott initiated the ABSORR Il clinical tral which Is designed to
entoll approximately 2,250 patients of which the majonty will be in
the U S The data from this tnal will be used to support the U §
regulatory fiing of Absorb In 2011 Abboll rleased five-year data
from its ABSORB clinical tnal, which showed efficacy and safety
results consistent with the four-year data In 2011 after receiving
CE Mark approval for Absorb, Abbott inttiated & randomized,
controlled clinical trial to further study the dewice in an expanded
population in Eucope In 2010, Abbott intiated the ABSORB
EXTEND climecal tnal which wall enrofl up to 1,000 pabents with
more complex coronary artary disease

» MitraClip device for the treatment of mitral regurgitation —
Abbott's MitraClip system which is on the market in Europe and
In parts of Asia and Latin Amenca Is currently under review for
approval by the FDA An amended filing to the FDA was submittad
in December 2011 A FDA panel 1s expected tc review the filing
in the first half of 2013

« Coronary and endovascular core product projects, including new
coronary and endovascular gude wires The Absolute Pro and
Omnilink Efite stent systems, both for the treaiment of liac artery
disease, a form of penpheral artery disease that affects the lower
extremitigs, wers launched in the U S in 2012

Medical Optics — Abbott is developing a number of new products

for patients undergoing cataract surgery, which are dasigned to
improve physician efficiency and patient outcomes Abbott has devel-
oped advanced Intraccular lenses {I0Ls) that address astigmatism as
well &s prasbyopia The Tecnis brand monotocal Torc 10L, which is
sold In Europe, 15 currently undergoing U S regulatory review A mutt-
focal version of the Tonc 10L was launched in & number of international
markets In 2012 A pretoaded \OL inserton system that is desgned o
Improve surgeon efficiency 1s also currently under regulatory review in
the U S, the product was launched n Europs n 2012 Abbott Is con-
tinung the development actmties required to obtain US approval for
an enhanced version of the Synchrony I0L which 1s designed to mumic
the oyo's natural abiity to change focus and deliver improvad vision at
all distancas, this product was launched in Europe in late 2012 Abbott
has also developed a new diagnostic instrument and laser treatment
planning software which is designed to improve visuat outcomes After
the receipt of CE Mark approval in November 2011, this instrument
and softwara were launched in Europe in 2012 A PMA filing for U S
regulatory approval of this product was subrmitted in 2012
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Molacular Diagnostics ~ Vanous new molecular in witro diagnostic (VD)
products, including encology and infectious disease assays and a next
generation instrument system are in various stages of development
and commercialzation Abbott's companion diagnostic test for an

ALK gane rearrangement test for non-small-cell lung cancer has been
approved in more than 40 countrias around the world In 2012,
companion diagnostc efforts were expanded to include collaborative
efforts with multiple major pharmacsutical companles Inthe U S,

an assay to genotype HCV-infected patients to ald in the choice of an
appropnale therapy was submutted for regulatory approval Additional
assays for infactious diseases Including MTb and MTb drug resistance
ara [n development

Core Laboratory Diagnostics — Abbotl 1s working on the development
of assays in vanous areas meluding intectious disease, cardiac care,
fertilty and metabolcs, and on next-generation biood screening,
hamatology, and immunochemistry instrument systems Abbott is also
focusing on near-term launches of automation solutlons, such as its
nexi-generation track system, ACCELERATOR a3600 to increase
efficiency in laboratones

Diabetes Care - In the first quarter of 2012, Abbott obtained U S
regutatory approval for its FreeStyfe Insul inx blood glucose monitonng
system that includas a touch-screen interface and other teatures
designed to support the insulin-using patent After recenving CE Mark
for this system n May 2011 and Health Canada approval in October
2011, Abbelt is continuing to provide R&D support as the product

1§ launched in additional markets Development is also continuing on
an updated hospital blood glucose monitoring system for which a filing
for approval is projected to be submitted inthe US dunng the first
hatf of 2013 Abbott 15 also developing a nexi-generation monitonng
system under the Pracision product platform and for which Abbott
anticipates submitting fiings for approval in vanous marksts in the
second half of 2013

Nutrition — Abbott 1s focusing 1ts ressarch and development spend

on six benefit platforms that span the pediatnc, adult and performance
nutntion areas wnmunity, cogrition, lean body mass, inflammation,
metabolism and tolerance Numerous new products that build on
advances In these benefit platforms are cumently undar development
and am expected to be launched over the cormng years

Given the diversity of Abbott's business, its intantion to remain a
broad-based healthcare company and the numerous sources for
potentia! future growth, no Indmdual projact is expected to be matenal
to cash flows or results of operations over the next five years Factors
consldered included research and development expenses projacied to
be incurred for the project over the naxt year retative to Abbott's total
research and development expensas as well as qualitative lactors,
such as marketplace perceptions and impact of a new product on
Abbott's overall market position There were no delays in Abbotl's
2012 research and development activities that ame expected to have

a matenal Impact on operatons

While the aggregate cost to complete the numerous projects currently
in development is expected to be material, the total cost to complete
will depend upon Abbott's abilty to successfully complete aach
project, the rate at which each project advances, and the ultimate
timing for complation Given the potential for significant delays and
the high rate of fallure inherent in the research and development of
new pharmaceutical and medical device products and technologies,

it s not possiblo to accurately estimate the total cost to complete all
projacts curently in development After the separation of AbbVie,
Abbott plans to manage its portfoko of projects to achieve research
and development spand equal to approximately 6 percent to 7 percent
of sales each year Abboll does not regutarly accumulate or make
managemant decisions based on the tolal expenses incurred for a
particular development phase in a givan pencd

Bustness Gombmations, Technology Acquisitions and
Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Pramal Healthcare Limited's
Healthcare Solutions business, a leader i the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 bion, in cash, plus additional payments of $400 milion
annually in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbott recorded a $1 6 billon
lizbitity for the present value of the additional payments at the acquisition
date The ecquisition was financed with cash  The allocation of the falr
value of the acquisition resulted in the recording of $2 7 billien of
deductible acquired intangible assets and $1 O bithon of deductible
goodwill Acquired ntangible assets consist pnmarlly of trade names,
customer relationships and associated nghts and are amortized over
an average of 19 years

in Fabruary 2010, Abboll acquired Solvay's pharmaceuticals business
(Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $6 1 billion, in cash, plus
additional payments of up to EUR 100 mifion per year if cerlain sales
milestones are met In 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $280 million was recerded The acquisition of Solvay
Phamaceuticals provided Abbaott with a large and complementary
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott’s presence
in key global emerging markets Abbot! acquired control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
operations ara ncluded in these financial statements beginning on that
data Net sales for the acqured operatons for 2010 were approxi-
mately $3 1 billon Pretax loss of the acquired operations, iIncluding
acquisttion, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $355 millon The acqusition was funded with cash and
short-term inmvestmants  The allocation of the fair value of the acquisi-
tion resulted In the recording of $2 2 billlon of non-dsductble goodwll,
$4 1 bilon of non-deductible ntanglble assets, $500 millon of non-
deductible acquired In-process research and development assets, net
{angible assets of $700 milion and deferred iIncome taxes of $1 1 bil-
fion Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of product nghis for
currently marksted products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years
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{average of 11 years) Acquired in-procaess research and development
projects are accounted for as Indefinte ived intangible assets unti
regulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assets
acquired consist pnmanty of trade accounts receivable of approxi-
mately $675 million, inventory of approximately $390 milhon, property
and equipment of approximately $725 milion, net of assumed labi-
ties, pnmarily trade accounts payable, accrued compensation and
other liabilities

Had the acquisttion of Solvay Pharmaceuticals taken place on

January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, nel earnings and
diluted earnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 bilion,

$4 6 billon and $2 98, respectivaly Tha pro forma information includes
adjustments for amorlization of intangble assets and fair value adjust-
ments to acquisition-date inventory as wall as acquisition, integration
and restructuring expenses The pro forma financial nformation is not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been effacted on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquired STARLIMS Technologies for approx-
matety $100 milion, in cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, providing
Abbott with leading products and expertise to build its position in
laboratory informatics A substantial portion of the fair value of the
acquisition has been allocated to goodwall and amortizable intangible
assats In Apnl 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of
Facet Biotech Corporation for approximately $430 million, In cash,

net of cash held by Face! The acquisition enhanced Abbott’s early-
and mid-stage pharmaceutical pipeline, including a biologic for
muitiple sclerosls and compounds that complement Abbotts oncology
program A substantial porbion of the fair value of the acquisition was
allocated to acquired In-process ressarch and developmaent that is
accounted for as an indefinte-lved intangible asset untll regulatory
approva! or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoli-
dated net sales and income would not have been signlificantly different
from reported amounts

Abbott's Propnatary Pharmaceutical Products segment has entered
into vanous collaboration research and development agreements

In 2012, Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under development for the
prevention of acute kidney injury associated with major cardiac surgery
in patients at ncreased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott
recorded a charge to acquirad In-process and collaborations research
and development of $110 millon in addition, 1n 2012, Abbott entered
into a global collaboration to davelop and commercialize an oral,
noxt-genaration JAK1 inhibitor in Phase [l development with the
potential to treat multiple autommune diseases, and as a result of
this transaction Abbott recorded a charge to acquired In-process and
collaborations research and development of $150 milion Additonal
payments of approximately $1 2 bilion could be required for the
achiavement of certain development, regulatory and commaerclal
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milestones under this agreement Under another collaboration,

Abbolt was granted the nghts n 2012 to utdze up to three antibody-
drug conjugats compounds and Abbott recorded a charge to acquired
n-process and collaborations research and development of $28 mil-
lion Additional payments of approximately $220 million for each
Icensed compound could be required for the achlevement of certain
development, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agree-
ment In connection with the acqulisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals,
the achievement of a certain sales milestone resulted in a payment

of approximately $134 million in the first quarter of 2012 for which a
liablity was previously established

During 2010 and 2011, Abbott enterad into a series of transactions
with Reata Pharmageuticals which included {1} a collaboration agree-
ment for the joint development and commercialzation of second
generation oral antioxidant inlammation modulators resulling in &
charge to acquired in-process and collaborations ressarch and devel-
opment af $400 milhon In 2011, (2) an agreement 1o acquwe hcensing
nghts outside the U S , excluding certain Aslan markets, to bardoxo-
lone methyl, a product in development for the treatment of chroni:
Kidney disease resulting in a charge to acquired in-process and collab-
orations research and development of $238 milkon in 2010 and (3} the
acqulstion of equity Interests in Reata of $62 milion each in 2011 and
2010 In 2011, cerlain milostonas wers achieved in the development
far the treatment of chronic kidney disease and charges to acquied
in-process and collaborations research and development of $188 mi-
lion were recorded In the first quarter of 2012, $50 millon of research
and development expense was recorded related to the achievement
of a clinical development milestone under the license agreament The
kcense agreement requires additional payments of up to $150 million
if certain development and regulatory milestones associated with the
chronic kidney dissase compound are achiaved

On Octaber 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that 1t 1s discontinuing
the Phase 1t clrical study for bardoxolone methyi for ¢chronic kidney
dissase Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to determine whether there is an appropnate path forward tor
the development of bardoxolona methy! in chronic kidney disease or
other indications In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbotlt recorded a
charge of approximately $50 millon for the impairment of the equity
Investment in Reata

in 2011, Abbolt entered into an agresment with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialize a treatment for theumataid arthntis and psonasis
resulting in a charge to acqulred in-process and collaborations
ressarch and development of $85 millon Additional payments totaling
up 1o $395 miton based on projected regulatory approval timelines
could be required for the achievement of certain development, regula-
tory and commercial milestones under this agresment [n 2010, Abbott
entered into an agreement with Neurocnine Biosciences to develop
and commerciaiize a product for the treatment of endometnosis result-
Ing 1n & charge to acquired In process and collaborations research and
develapment of $75 milion Additional payments of approximataly
$500 millon coutd be required for the achievemant of certain develop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under ths agreement
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Goodwill

At Dacember 31, 2012, goodwill recorded as a result of business
combinations totaled $15 B billon Goodwlll 1s reviewed for impalmment
annually or when an event that could result in an impalrment occurs
The rasults of the last impalrment test indicated that the fair value of
each reporting unit was substantially in excess of its carrying value
except for the Madical Optics unit While the fair value of the Medical
Qptics business exceeds its carrying valus, extended economic pres-
sure on government-reimbursed cataract procedures in Europe and
on the global LASIK surgery business as well as longer regulatory
approval tmelines for products cumently under development could
result in a valuation in the fulurs where the far value of the Medical
Optics unit has declined below its camying value, thereby triggering the
requlremnent to estimate the impled falr value of the goodwill and mea-
sure for impalment

Financial Condiion
Cash Flow

Net cash from operating activities amounted to $9 3 biflion, $9 0 billion
and $8 7 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Trade accounts
payable and other flabilities in Net cash from operating activities in
2012 includes the payment of approximately $1 5 billion related to

a liigation accrual recorded in 2011 This was parhally offset by
increasas in other habilties, pnmanly restructunng reserves Income
taxes payable in 2012 and 2011 includes $408 milion and $580 mill-
lion, respectvely, of tax benefits related to the favorable resohution of
vanous tex postions pertaining to pnor years While substantially all
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 that will ba retained
by Abbott after the separation and all cash and cash equivalents at
Decomber 31, 2011 and 2010 1s considered remvested indefinitely

in forexgn subsidiaries, Abbott does not expect such reinvestment to
aftect its liquidity and capital resources I these funds were neaded
for operations in the U §, Abbott would be required to accrue and
pay U S income taxas to repatnate these funds Abbolt believes

that it has sufficient sources of liquidity to support its assumption that
the disclosed amount of undistnbuted earnings at Becember 31, 2012
can be considered to be reinvested iIndefinitely Abbott funded

$379 milkon in 2012, $394 million n 2011 and $525 milien n 2010 to
defined pension plans Abbott expacts penslon funding for its main
domastic pension plan of $170 million i 2013, the dacrease prmanly
reflects the separation of AbbVie and the transfer of certain plan
assets and labllies to AbbVie Abbott expects annual cash flow from
operabing actvibies to continue to excasd Abboll’'s capital expendiures
and cash dnidends

For 2010, the reductions in cash and cash equivalents due 1o the
effoct of axchange rate changes was pnmarity dnven by the mpact

of changes in the valug of the U S dollar compared to the euro on
non-dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents While future fluc-
tuations in the value of the U S dollar against forergn cumancies could
have a substantial effact on the dollar value of Abbott's cash and cash
equivalents, such fluctuations are not expected to matenally impact
Abboti's iquidity

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2012, Abbott's long-term debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Service
In 2012, Abbott replaced unusad lines of credit of $3 0 billon and

$3 7 billon that were to expire In October 2012 and in 2013, respec-
tively, with two five-year cradit facilities tataling $7 O billion that support
commerclal paper borrowing arrangernents One of the credit faciities
totaling $2 0 bikion wit suppoit AbbVie commarclal paper bormrowings
after separation and expired for Abbott at the saparation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013

In 2012, Abbott redeermed $7 7 billon of long-term notas in prepara-
tion for the separation of AbbVie from Abbott and repaid $1 bidlion

of fong-term notes that were due in 2012 in addiion, AbbVie Inc ,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, 1ssued $14 7 billion of long-term
notes that wene guaranteed by Abbott until AbbVie's separation from
Abbett on January 1, 2013 in 2011, Abbott repald $2 0 bilion of long-
term notes using pnmarly short-term bomewings Under a registration
statement fited with the Securities and Exchange Commission 1n
February 2009, Abbott issued $3 O bifion of long termm debt in the sec-
ond quarter of 2010 with maturity dates n 2015, 2020 and 2040 and
Interest rates of 2 7 percent, 4 125 percent and 5 3 percent, respec-
tivaly The debt dus in 2015 was extinguished In 2012 Proceeds from
this debt were used to pay down short-term borrowings

In October 2008, the board of directars authonzed the purchase of up
to $5 bilton of Abbott's common shares from time to trne Under this
authorzation, 37 0 million and 14 8 milson shares were purchased In
2012 and 2010 &t a cost of approximately $2 2 bilien and $800 mil-
lon, respectively No shares were purchased under this authorization
in 2011 Abbott plans to purchase shares from time to time in 2013

The judgment entered In 2009 by the U S Distnct Court for the
Eastern District of Texas against Abbott in ts ltigation with New York
University and Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secure the judgment
Inthe event that its appeal to the Fedearal Circutt court was unsuccess-
ful n ovarturning the distncl court's decision In the first quarter of
2010, Abbott deposited $1 87 bifion with an escrow agent and con-
sidered these assets to ba restncted On February 23, 2011, the
Fedaral Circutt reversed the distnct court’s final judgment and found
Centocor’s patent invald On April 25, 2011, Centocor petitioned the
Fedaral Circuit to rehear and reconsider the decision In June 2011
the Federal Circutt denled Centocor’s petition and the restnctions on
the funds were ited




Financial Review

Working Capltal

Working capltal was $18 0 billion at December 31, 2012, $8 3 blllion
at Decernber 31, 2011 and $5 1 billon at December 31, 2010 The
increase in working capital in 2012 was due pnmanly to higher cash
generated from operating actvities and higher cash and investments
as a result of the net iIssuance of long-term debt in connection with the
separation of AbbVie from Abbott The Increass in working capital in
2011 was due primanly to higher cash generated from operating actm-
ties and lower dabt levals The decrease in working capital in 2010
was due primarily to cash and investments used to acquire Solvay's
pharmaceuticals business and Piramal Healthcare Limited's Healthcare
Solutions businass

Substantally all of Abbolt's trade recewabilss in ltaly, Spaln, Portugal,
and Greece are with governmental heallh systems Given the eco-
rnomic conditions and soveregn debt ssuss in thase countnes, the
time It takes to collect outstanding recevables increased in 2011

In 2012, collechion Limes improved relative to 2011 with the exception
of Greace Quistanding net governmental recevables in these coun-
trigs at December 31, 2012 were

Net Parcentage Over
{dotiars in mitkons) Receivables One Year Past Oua
Haby 3584 162
Spain 431 1] ]
Portugal 121 284
Greoce 88 2086

With the exception of Greece, Abbott histoncally has collacted almost
all of the outstanding recalvablas In these countriss Abbott continues
to monitor the credit worthiness of customers kacated in these and
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othar geographic areas and establishes an allowance against a trade
recavable when it Is probabla that the batance will not be collected

In addition to closely monitoning economic condtions and budgetary
and other fiscal developments in these countnes, Abbott regularly
communicates with its customers regarding the status of recalvable
balances, inclhuding thelr paymant plans and obtains positive confirma-
tion of the vahdity of the recetvables Abbott also monitors the potential
for and penodically has utiized factoring amangements to mitigate
cradit risk although the receivables Included in such arrangements
have histoncally not besn a matenal amount of total outstanding
receivables If government funding were to become unavailable in
these countries or If significant adverse changes in thelr reimburse- !
ment practices were {0 oceur, Abbott may not be able to collect the
entirg balance

Capital Expenditutes

Capital expenditures of $1 8 bilion in 2012, $1 5 bilhon in 2011

and $1 0 bilkon in 2010 were principally for upgrading and expanding
manufacturing, research and development, and administrative support
facilites in all segments, invastments in information technology, and
laboratory instruments placed with customers

Contractual Ohligations

The table below summanzes Abbott's estimated contractual oblgatons
as of Dacember 31, 2012 The amounts do not reflect the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 After the separation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013, pnncipal payments required on long-
term debt outstanding and retained by Abbott are $308 million in 2013
and $3 3 bilhon in 2019 and thersafter Payments on long-term debt to
be made by AbbVie, iIncluding Interest, total approximately $19 6 bilion

fclolfars n mullions) Payment Due By Period
2018 and

Total 2013 2014-2015 2016 2017 Thereafter |
Long term debt, including current maturities and future interest paymants $26,403 $ 839 $ 5,039 $4,029 $15,506 |
Operating laase oblgations 795 146 234 170 245
Capltalized auto lease obiligations 82 31 81 - —
Purchase commitments (g) 3,154 3048 88 1 17
Other long term habilities reflacled on the consobdated balance sheat —
Bensfit plan oblgations 5126 - 1.024 1,149 2,853
Other 3,869 - 3,682 32 155
Total (b) $39,439 $4 064 $10,128 $6,281 $18,966

{a} Purchase commutments are lor purchases mads i 1he normal cowrsa of busineas to meet operational and capital expendiiure roguTements

(b) Linrecognized tax benelits totaling $2 0 bikon ara exciuded from the 1able above as Abbotf s unabie to reasonably estmate the perod of cash seiliament with 1he respective taxng

authorts on such rems
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Contingent Obligations

Abboatt has periodically entered Into agreements in the ordinary
coursa of busingss, such as assignment of product nghts, with other
companies which has resufted in Abbott becoming secondanly lable
for obligations that Abbott was previously primarily liable Since Abbott
no longer maintains a business relationship with the other parties,
Abbott is unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential
amount of future payments, if any, under these obligations Based
upon past expsrience, the lkelihood of payments under these agree-
ments is remote in addtion, Abbott periodically acquires a2 business
or product nights in which Abbott agrees to pay contingent consider-
ation based on attalning certain thresholds or based on the
occumence of certain events

Legistative |ssues

in 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and tha
Health Care and Education Reconcliiation Act (collectively referred
to herain as “health care reform legislation™) were signed into law in
the US Health care reform legislation included an increase in the
baskc Medicad rebate rate from 15 1 percent to 23 1 percent and
extended the rebate to drugs provided through Medicaid managed
care organizations

Beginning in 2013, health care reform tegislation will ehminate the
federal ncome tax deduction for prascription drug expenses of mliress
for which Abbott receves reimbursement under the Medicare Part D
relires drug subsidy program As a result, Abbott recorded a charge of
approximatety $60 milkon in the first quarter 2010 to reduce deferred
tax assets associated with retiree health care liabilties

$150

! $50
2007 2008 2009 2010

Assuming $100 invested on 12/31/07 with dividends remvested
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In 2011, Abbott began recording the annual tee knposed by health
care reform legislation on companies that sell branded prescription
drugs to specified govermment programs The amount of the annual
foe Is based on the ratio of certain of Abbolt's sales as compared to
the total such sales of all covered entities multiplied by a fixed dollar
amount specified in the legisiation by year In 2011, additional rebates
wara incurred related to the Medicare Part D coverage gap “donut
haole " Beginning in 2013, Abboti will record the 2 3 percent excise tax
imposed by health care reform legislation on the sale of certaln mad-
cal devices Inthe U S

Abbott's pnmary markets are highly competitive and subject to sub-
stantiat government regulations throughout the world Abbott expects
debata to continue over the availlability, method of delvery, and pay-
ment for health care products and services 1t is not possible to predict
the extant to which Abbott or the heafth care industry in general might
be adversely affected by these factors in the future A mom complete
discusslon of these factors 1s contained in item 1, Business, and ltem
1A, Risk Factors, to the Annual Report on Form t0-K

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 —
A Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securties Likgation
Reform Act of 1995, Abbott cautions investors that any forward-look-
ing statements or projections made by Abbott, including those made
1n this document, are subject {o nsks and uncertaintles that may cause
actual results to differ matenaty from those projected Economic, com-
petitve, governmenital, technological and othar factors that may affect
Abbott's operations are discussed i Hem 1A, Risk Factors, to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K

Performance Graph

Thes graph compares the change

in Abhott's cumulative total shave-

: hotder return on its common shares

i with the Standard & Poor's 500
Index and the Standard & Poor's

1 500 Health Care Indax

= Abbo't Laboratonas
w v SLP 500 index
+ = ¢ SEP 500 Health Care

201 2012




Summary of Selected Financial Data
{dodars in miions, oxcop! per share data)
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‘Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Summary of Operations

Net Sales $308730 388513 351667 307647 205276 250142 224763 223378 196800 17,2803 152795
Cost of products sotd $151187 155406 146852 13,2093 126120 114220 98151 10,8411 8,884 2 77742 6,820 56
Research end development {8}  § 4,322 2 41204 37244 27437 2,688 1 25056 22553 18212 1,696 8 16238 14745
Selimy genearal

and admirwstraive $120595 12,7568 10,3763 84059 84356 74080 8,348 7 5,496 1 48218 4,808 1 37249
Operating earnings $ 80845 57519 8,087 6 56,2367 56938 45785 20422 43623 38933 29740 31619
Interest expanse $ 5924 5301 5531 5197 5285 5931 4162 2414 2002 1883 2389
nterest income $ T2 B52) {105 5) (137 8) 201 2} (136 8) {123 8) 877 511) 419 {335)
Other (incomea), net (b) $ 13188 1586 620} {1,3755) (489 7) (347 5) (526 5) 4113 (376 4) {559 5) 374 4)
Earmrengs from continuing

oporations before taxes $ 62626 51886 57128 7,1938 5,856 3 44696 2,2764 461989 4,1258 33872 33210
Taxes on earnings from

continuing operations $ 2997 4702 1,086 7 14479 11221 B63 3 5508 1,247 9 9488 882 4 7740
Earnings from

continung cperations $ 59629 47284 46262 57458 47342 36063 17168 33721 31758 25047 25470
Baslc earnings per share

from continung operatons $ 376 303 2098 an 308 234 112 217 203 160 163
Dihted earnings per share

from continuing operations $ 372 301 286 363 303 23 112 218 202 159 162
Financial Position

Worlang capital $18,0424 82885 50851 10,284 4 5,106 8 49395 (6693) 39705 3.9088 26509 2,186
Long term investmonts § 2736 a2 3020 11329 10737 1,1253 1,2299 1340 1458 406 4 2508
Net property and equipment  $ 80830 7.8740 78710 76195 72192 75181 69464 60031 6,007 9 62818 5,828 1
Total assats 672349 80,2769 605739 525816 424192 39,7139 36,1782 291412 287675 280383 235827
Long term debt $180853 12,6398 125235 112663 87133 9,487 8 70087 45715 4,787 9 34523 42740
Sharsholders. investrmant $268132 24,5261 227851 233874 175187 178239 140542 1441563 143258 130723 106646
Return on shareholders’

Invastment from

conmning operabons % 232 200 204 284 269 227 121 235 238 226 280
Book valye pet share $§ 1701 1562 14 53 1476 128 1147 914 937 918 836 682
Other Statistics

Gross profit margin % 621 600 583 571 573 659 563 524 549 550 554
Rasearch and davelopment

to net sales % 108 106 106 B89 a1 ar 100 82 86 04 97
Net cash from

operating activbes

of continuing cperations 93144 84701 8,736 0 72762 69946 51838 52621 50474 43060 3,385 2 365356
Capltal expendtures $ 17653 14015 1,015 1 1,088 0 12877 16562 13378 12075 12916 10501 11054
Cash dwvidends declared

per common share $ 167 192 176 160 144 130 118 110 104 098 094
Common shares

outstanding {in thokssands) 1576667 1,570,370 1,546984 1551168 1552433 1549010 1537243 1530235 1560024 1,564,518 1563,068
Number of

common shareholders 80476 62 839 64,413 67 461 69,733 73176 izt B2 237 B8 582 91212 94,687
Number of employees 92,939 91,022 91440 72868 68 838 68 697 66,663 59,735 60617 58,181 57810
Sales per employes (indollars)  § 429033 4722855 384,588 422198 428843 377,225 337163 373948 324662 297010 264,265
Market pdce per share—high § 7247 56 44 5670 5739 6109 59 50 48 87 5000 4763 47 16 5800
Market price per share - low % 5396 4507 44 59 a7 4575 4875 3918 3750 3826 3375 29 80
Markat price per share-—close  $ 8550 56 23 4799 5399 5337 56 15 4871 3943 46 65 46 60 4000

@ w2012 2091 2010 2009 2006 2005 2004, 2003 2002 and 2001 Abbott als0 recorded pretax charges of $288 $573 $313 $170 $2014 $17, $270 $100 $108 and $1 330
respectvely tor acquied in process research and development
% 2012 nchudes $1 350 (or the net loss on extinguishment of detn




